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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor 
And Members of the City Council 
City of Abbeville, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Abbeville, Louisiana, 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the City's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fiuud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procediures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 



Basis for Adverse Opinion on Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units and Qualified 
Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 

The financial statements referred to above do not include financial data for the City's legally separate 
component units. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require 
financial data for those component units to be reported with the financial data of the City's primary 
government unless the City also issues financial statements for the financial reporting entity that include 
the financial data for its component units. The City has not issued such reporting entity financial 
statements. The amount by which this departure w^ould affect the assets, liabilities, net position, revenues 
and expenditures of the govermnental activities has not been determined. 

Adverse Opinion on Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units 

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter described in the "Basis for Adverse Opinion on 
Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units and Qualified Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund 
Information" paragraph, the financial statements referred to above do not present fairly the financial 
position of the aggregate discretely presented component units of the City of Abbeville, Louisiana, as of 
December 31, 2020, or the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Qualified Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 

In our opinion, except for the matter described in the "Basis for Adverse Opinion on Aggregate Discretely 
Presented Component Units and Qualified Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information" 
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Abbeville, Louisiana, as of December 
31, 2020, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Unmodified Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major 
fund of the City of Abbeville, Louisiana, as of December 31, 2020, and the respective changes in 
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary 
comparison schedules, the schedule of changes in net OPEB liabilit}'^ and related ratios, the schedule of 
proportionate share of net pension liability, the schedule of contributions, and the schedule of Justice 
System funding on pages 54-59 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, altliough not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the infonnation and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 



Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis that aceounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Abbeville, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The budgetary comparison 
schedules, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and the comparative 
departmental analysis of utility fund are presented for puiposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basie finaneial statements. 

The budgetary comparison schedules, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and 
the comparative (fcpartmental analysis of utility flind, are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other reeords used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordanee with auditing standards generally aeeepted in the United States of Ameriea. In our opinion, 
the budgetary comparison schedules, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basie finaneial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In aecordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 12, 2021, 
on our consideration of the City of Abbeville, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The puipose of tliat report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Abbeville, Louisiana's internal eontrol over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City of Abbeville, Louisiana's intemal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

A Corporation of Certified Publie Accountants 

Abbeville, Louisiana 
May 12, 2021 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE. LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 
December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Totals for December .11.2019 

ASSETS 
Current assets; 

Cash and interest-lwaring deposits 
Recei'vables. net 
Due from otlrer go\einmental units 
Due from otlrer fund 
biwufoiy-mateiials and supplies, at cost 

Total cuiTeiit assets 

Noncuri'ent assets; 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 
Coital assets, net 

Total nonciuient assets 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred outflows related to net OPEB 
Deferred outflows related to net 

pension liability 

LIABE.ITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts, salaries and other payables 
Due to otlrer fund 
Coital lease payable, due witliin on year 
Bonds payable, due within one yeai" 

Total current liabilities 

Nonciirrent liabilities; 
Compensated absences 
Customers deposits 
OPEB obligations 
Net jKirsion liability 
Capital lease payable 
Bonds payable 

Total noiicurreiit liabilities 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred inflows related to net OPEB 
Deferred inflows related to net 

pension liability 

NETPOSmON 
Net inwstment in capital assets 
L^nrestricted 

Total net position (deficit) 

Gor^niniental 
Activities 

$ 2,209,829 
827,067 
155,299 
15,000 
4.762 

3,211.957 

17.921.303 
17.921.303 

21.133.260 

2,641,047 

3.451.867 
6.092.914 

417,260 

48.903 
714.000 

1.180.163 

694,764 

17.055,528 
9.787,245 

48.904 
1.830.000 

29.416.441 

30.596.604 

2,835,935 

1.041.335 
3.877.270 

15,279,496 
(22.527.196) 

1 (7.247.700) 

Business-Tyi^ 
Activities 

$ 1.316.962 
1,834,574 

950.042 

285.466 
4,387,044 

1,003,891 
12.439.031 
13.442.922 

17.829.966 

880.349 

391.154 
1.271.503 

805,045 
15.000 

820.045 

1.003,891 
5,685,176 
1,661,886 

8,350.953 

9,170.998 

945,312 

43.413 
988.725 

12,439,031 
(3.497^285) 

5 8.941.746 

Total 
2019 
Totals 

3,526.791 
2,661.641 
1,105.341 

15.000 
290,228 

7.599,001 

1,003,891 
30.360.334 
31.364.225 

38.963.226 

3,521.396 

3.843.021 
7.364.417 

1,222,305 
15,000 
48,903 

714.000 
2.000,208 

694,764 
L003.891 

22,740,704 
11,449,131 

48,904 
1.830.000 

37.767,394 

39.767,602 

3,781,247 

1.084.748 
4.865.995 

27,718,527 
(26.024.481) 

5 1.694.046 

4,185,991 
2,563,550 

103.959 

329.844 
7,183.344 

998,920 
31.503.986 
32.502.906 

39.686.250 

1.419,228 

2.160.158 
3.579,386 

1.165.836 

694.000 
1.859.836 

694,066 
998,920 

19,664,593 
9.521,456 

2.544.000 
33.423.035 

35,282.871 

4.159,372 

1.236.872 
5.396.244 

28,265,986 
(25.679.465) 
; 2,586.521 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Activities 
Year Ended December 31. 2020 

Program Revenues 

Activities 
Governmental activities: 

General goveiiraeut 
PublK safety: 

PoKce 
Fire 

Hi^ways and streets 

Culture and recreatbu 

Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activites 
Biisiness-t>pe activities: 

Ekctric 
Water 

Sewer 

Total business-type activi'ies 

Total 

Expenses 

2.165,303 

3,814932 
4359,763 
2,138,888 

527,533 

65.959 

13,072,378 

7.992,380 
1.856,080 

1.927.565 

11,776.024 

24.848.402 

Fees, Fines, and 
Cliarges for Services 

$ 595,589 

59.325 

Oj«ratiug 

Grants and 
Coiitribtitions 

$ 646,318 

28,842 
191,438 

Capital 

Grants and 
Contributions 

$ 180,174 

Net (Expense) Revenues and 
Chaii2es hi Net Position 

654,914 

12371,063 
1,919,963 

1.893.081 

16.084.107 

S 16739021 

180,174 

S 866.598 $_ 180174 

General revenues: 
Taxes -

Property taxes, le\Ted for general purposes 
Property taxes, levied for sewer hiprovement 
Safes and use taxes, levied for general pupDses 

Payment hi lieu of taxes 

FrauchLe aixl chain store taxes 

Interest and investment eamhigs 

Gain on disposal of fixed asset 
Miscellaneous 

Transfers 
Total general rewnues and transfers 

Change hi net position 

Net position (deficit) - December 31,2019 

Net position (deficit) - December 31,2020 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements 
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GovemiiMntal Biisiness-Ty^ 

ActK'hies Activities Total 

$ (743322) s $ (743,222) 

(3,726,765) - (3,726,765) 
(4,168,325) - (4,168,325) 
(2,138.888) - (2,138,888) 

(527,533) - (527,533) 

t65.959) _ (65.959) 

(11,370.692) - (11370,692) 

- 4378,683 4378,683 

- 63,883 63,883 

(34.484) (34.484) 
. 4.308.083 4308.083 

(11.370.6921 4308.083 (7.062.609) 

345,704 - 345,704 

5,239,633 _ 5339,633 

16,740 - 16.740 
199,975 - 199,975 

4,034 20,723 24,757 
5.907 - 5,907 

251,030 - 251,030 

5.484303 (5.484303) 

11.633.614 (5.463.480) 6.170.134 

262,922 (1,155,397) (892,475) 

(7.510.622) 10.097.143 2.586.521 

$ (7.247.7001 S 8.941.746 $ 1.694.046 



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS) 



MAJOR FLINDS 

General Fund 

The General Fund is used to aecount for resources traditionally associated with governments which are 
not required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Fund 

Sales Tax Fund -

To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the City's one and one-quarter pereent sales and use tax. 
These taxes are dedieated to the following purposes: eonstrueting, acquiring, improving, and maintaining 
police and fire department stations and equipment; garbage and waste disposal facilities; streets, 
sidewalks, and drainage facilities; sewer and sewerage disposal works; park faeilities; and paying a 
portion of the salaries and benefits of City employees. 

Enterprise Fund 

Utility Fund -

To account for the provision of electric, water, and sewerage ser\dces to residents of the City. All 
activities necessary to provicfc such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, 
administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and billing and collection. 



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 
Decembers!, 2020 

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019 

ASSETS 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 
Receivables: 

Taxes 
Franchise fees and royahies 
Other 

Dr^ from other governments 
Inventory 

T otal assets 

General 
Fund 

S 231,502 

157,086 
147,712 
22,953 
54,704 
4.762 

Sales Tax 
Fund 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Totals 
(Memorandum Only) 
2020 2019 

81,071,854 

429,289 

30,752 
96.845 

753,389 82,056,745 82,098,229 

39,275 

3,750 

625,650 
147,712 
53,705 
155,299 
4.762 

476,444 
164,292 
46,085 
103,959 
4.324 

8 618.719 81.628.740 .8 796.414 83.043.873 82.893..3.33 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries 
Other accrued liabilities 
Due to other funds 

T otal liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable - inventoiy 
Restricted for economic development 
Restricted for fire protection 
Restricted for sewer improvement 
Restricted for salaries and benefits 
Restricted for capital outlay 
Restricted for airport operations 
Assigned tor debt ser\4ce 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

56,004 
23,717 
145,292 
45.000 

270.013 

4.762 

54,144 

.289, 
348.706 

8 2.873 

2.873 

3,819 

Total liabilities and fund balances 8 618,719 

816,428 
809,439 

1.625.867 

81,628.740 

3.819 

24,078 
94,071 
87,551 

586,895 

62,696 
23,717 
145,292 
45.000 
276.705 

4,762 
24,078 
94,071 
87,551 

816,428 
809,439 
54,144 

586,895 
289.800 

184,104 
171,613 
75,035 
108.250 
539.002 

4,324 
24,078 
90,946 
60,882 

410,211 
875,752 
11,608 

574,778 
301.752 

792,595 2,767.168 2,354.331 

$ 796.414 S3.043.873 S2.893.333 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Statement of Net Position 

Decembers!, 2020 

Total fond balances for governmental fonds at December 31, 2020 $ 2,767,168 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
position is different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 
Land $ 898,029 
Construction in progress 144,257 
Buildings, net of 51,871,610 accumulated depreciation 2,338,330 
Infrastructure, net of 528,727,599 accumulated depreciation 5,767,663 
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures net of $4,542,734 accumulated depreciation 2,120,030 
Improvements other than buildings, net of $15,225,797 accumulated depreciation 6,652.994 17,921,303 

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the fonds. Those 
liabilities consist of: 

Bonds payable (2,544,000) 
Capital lease payable (97,807) 
Compensated absences (694,764) 
OPEB obligations (17,055,528) 
Net pension liability (9.787.2451 (30,179,344) 

Net deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are not due and 
payable in the current period expenditures and therefore are not reported in the fonds (194,888) 

Net deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not 
available to pay cun'ent period expenditures and therefore are not reported in the funds 2,410,532 

Net position of the Internal Service Funds 27.529 

Total net position (deficit) of governmental activities at December 31, 2020 $ (7.247.7001 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds 

Year Ended December 31, 2020 
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

General Sales Tax 
Other 

Governmental 
Totals 

Fund Fund Funds 2020 2019 
Revenues: 

Taxes S 375,349 $5,239,633 

oo 0
0

 0
0

 0
0
 

$5,701,370 $4,210,927 
Licenses and permits 595,589 - - 595,589 584.714 
Intergovernmental 169.292 555,868 321.612 1,046,772 1,349,461 
Fines and forfeitures 59,325 - - 59,325 60,243 
Miscellaneous 470,315 1.919 891 473.125 615.080 

Total revenues 1.669,870 5.797.420 408.891 7.876.181 6,820.425 

Expenditures: 
Current -

General government 1,750,171 19,932 8,148 1,778,251 1,840,965 
Public safety: 

Police 3,465,623 35,386 - 3,501,009 3,044,131 
Fire 3,869,532 15,965 - 3,885,497 3,405,465 

Hi^ways and streets 1,070,737 214,337 - 1,285,074 1,330,417 
Culture and recreation 401,179 5,204 - 406,383 453,889 

Capital outlay 31,299 1,092,796 290,213 1,414,308 2,402,403 
Debt service -

Principal retirement - 48,903 694.000 742,903 661,373 
Interest and fiscal charges - - 65.959 65,959 83,228 

T otal expenditures 10.588.541 1.432.523 1.058.320 13.079.384 13.221.871 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (8,918,6711 4.364.897 (649.429) (5.203.203) (6,401.446) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from capital lease - 146,710 - 146,710 -
T ransfers in 8,959,285 1,757 780,994 9,742,036 8,938,170 
T ransfers out (9.592) (4.173.460) (89.654) (4.272.706) (3.111.074) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 8.949,693 (4.024.993) 691.340 5.616,040 5,827.096 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources 
over expenditures and other 
financing uses 31,022 339,904 41,911 412,837 (574,350) 

Fund balances, beginning 317,684 1.285.963 750.684 2.354.331 2,928.681 

Fund balances, ending S 348.706 $1.625.867 S 792.595 $2.767.168 S 2.354.331 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

to the Statement of Activities 
Year Ended December 3 L 2020 

T otal net changes in fund balances at December 31, 2020 per Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances S 412,837 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of activities is different because; 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

CapKal outlay which is considered e^enditures on Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances S 1,414,308 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2020 (1.612.468) (198,160) 

Proceeds on disposal of fixed asset (16,118) 

Gain on disposal of fixed asset 5,907 

The repayment of debt principal is an ejq^enditure in the governmental 
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement 
of net position. This amount is the net effect of these differences in 
the treatment of long-tenn debt and related items. 

Bonds payable 694,000 
Capital lease payable 48,903 

Proceeds from debt issuance on capiatal lease (146,710) 

Net increase (decrease) of the Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund (64^448) 

Excess (deficiency) of compensated absences used over compensated absences earned (698) 

OPEB benefhs (expenses) reported in the statement of actfoities do not 
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as 
benefits (expenditures) in governmental funds (446,863) 

Net effect of pension liability recognition (25.728) 

Total changes in net position at December 31, 2020 per Statement of Activities S 262.922 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Comparative Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Busmess-t>pe Activities -
Enterprise Fund 

Governmental Actmties -
Internal Service Funds 

2020 2019 2020 2019 
ASSETS 

Current assets; 
Cash and interest-bearing deposits 
Receivables: 

Accounts 
Unbilled utility receivables 

S 1,316,962 

1,059,554 
775.020 

1,977,297 S 153,084 

1,180,583 
696.146 

158.715 

T otal net position S 8.941.746 

Due from other governmental units 950,042 - - -
Due from other funds - - 60,000 60,000 
Inventoiy - materials and supplies, at cost 285.466 325.520 _ _ 

T otal current assets 4.387.044 4.179.546 213.084 218.715 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets -

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 1,003,891 998,920 - -
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 12.439.031 13.374.312 _ _ 

T otal noncurrent assets 13.442.922 14.373.232 _ _ 

Total assets 17.829.966 18.552.778 213.084 218.715 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 880,349 354,807 - -
Deferred outflows related to pension liabilities 391.154 350.426 _ _ Deferred outflows related to pension liabilities 

1,271,503 705.233 _ _ 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 740,159 547.303 185,555 126,738 
Accrued salaries payable 39,704 22,662 - -
Other accrued liabilities 25,182 23,381 - -
Due to other funds 15,000 15.000 _ _ 

T otal current liabilities 820,045 608.346 185.555 126.738 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Customers' deposits 1,003,891 998,920 - -
OPEB obligations 5,685,176 4,916,148 - -
Net pension liability I.66I.886 1.494.347 _ _ 

T otal noncurrent liabilities 8.350.953 7.409.415 _ _ 

T otal liabilities 9.170.998 8.017.761 185.555 126.738 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deterred inflows related to OPEB 945,312 1,039,843 - -
Deferred inflows related to pension liabilities 43,413 103.264 _ _ Deferred inflows related to pension liabilities 

988,725 1.143.107 _ _ 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 12,439,031 13,374,312 - -
Unrestricted 13.497.285) 13.277.169) 27.529 91.977 

10.097.143 S 27.529 91.977 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 
Proprietary Fun(fe 

Years Ended December 31. 2020 and 2019 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 
Other 

T otal operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Electric department 
Water department 
Sewerage department 
Depreciation 

Self insurance expenses 
T otal operating ej^enses 

Business-type Activities-
Enterprise Fund 

2020 

S 15,811,118 
272.989 

16.084.107 

8,637,303 
1,587,850 
1,418,425 
1,142,644 

12.786.222 

2019 

S 16,492,714 
311,321 

16.804.035 

7,376,789 
674,517 
770,406 

1,182,330 

10.004.042 

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds 

2020 

$2,297,638 
148.378 

2.446.016 

2.510.707 
2.510.707 

2019 

$2,476,508 
201.593 

2.678.101 

2.591.333 
2.591.333 

243 

Operating income (loss) 3.297.885 6.799.993 (64.691) 

Nonoperating revenues: 
Interest income 20,723 31,523 

Grant revenues 995.325 ^ 

Total nonoperating revenues 1.016.048 31.523 

Income (loss) before contributions 
and transfers 4.313.933 6.831.516 (64.448) 

243 

315 

315 

87,083 

Transfers in (out): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

T otal transfers in (out) 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning 

Net position, ending 

604,442 
(6.073.772) 

(5.469.330) 

(1,155,397) 

10.097.143 

384,972 
(6.212.068) 

(5.827.096) 

1,004,420 

9.092.723 

(64,448) 

91.977 

?7,083 

4.894 

S 8.941.746 S 10.097.143 S 27.529 $ 91.977 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Comparative Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fun(fe 

Years Ended December 31. 2020 and 2019 

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Fund 

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds 

2020 2019 2020 2019 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Receipts from customers 
Receipts from interfimd services provided 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Other rece^ts 

Net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
T ransfers from other funds 
Transfers to other funds 

Net cash used by noncapital 
financino activities 

S 15,853,273 $ 16,491,317 

(8,666,896) 
(2,509,014) 

272.989 

4.950.352 

604,442 
(6.073.772) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Net proceeds of meter deposits 
Grants 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 

Net cash provided (used) by capital 

and related financing activities 

4,971 
45,283 

Cash flows from inv'esting activities: 
Interest on investments 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equwalents, end of year 

(8,768,410) 
(2,410,204) 

311.321 

5.624.024 

384,972 
(6.212.068) 

S - S 
2,297,638 2,476,508 

(2,451,890) (2,637,909) 

148.378 

(5.874) 

(5.469.330) (5.827.096) 

20,907 

(303.645) 

235.986 

74.585 

(157.109) (282.738) 

20.723 31.523 243 315 
20.723 31.523 243 315 

(655,364) (454,287) (5,631) 74,900 

2.976.217 3.430.504 158.715 83.815 

S 2.320.853 $ 2.976.217 S 153.084 S 158.715 

(continued) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Comparative Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds (Continued) 

Years Ended December 31. 2020 and 2019 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided (used) by operating actwities; 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to 

net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in current assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in other receivables 
(Increase) decrease in inventory 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries payable 
Increase (decrease) in other accrued liabilities 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 
Increase (decrease) in OPEB obligations 
Increase (decrease) in pension obligations 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Fund 

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds 

2020 

1,142,644 

42,155 

40,054 
192,856 
17,042 
1,801 

148,955 
66.960 

2019 2020 2019 

S 3,297,885 S 6,799,993 S (64,691) S 86,768 

1,182,330 

(1,397) 

2,066 
(22,941) 
3,642 
(253) 

(2,211,696) 
(127.720) 

58.817 

34,393 

(46,576) 

S 4.950.352 S 5.624.024 (5.874) S 74.585 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents per 
statement of cash flows to the batonce sheet: 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year -
Cash and interest-bearing deposits - unrestricted 
Cash and interest-bearing deposits - restricted 

T otal cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year -
Cash and interest-bearing deposits - unrestricted 
Cash and interest-bearing deposits - restricted 

T otal cash and cash equivalents 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

S 1,977,297 S 2,452,491 S 158,715 S 83,815 

2.976.217 3.430.504 158.715 83.815 

1,316,962 1,977,297 153,084 158,715 
1.003.891 998.920 - -

2.320,853 2.976,217 153.084 158.715 

S (655.364) S (454.287) S (5.631) S 74.900 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying financial statements of the City of Abbeville (City) have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. GAAP includes all relevant Govemmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) pronouncements. The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant 
accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this note. 

Financial Reporting Entity 

The City was incorporated on March 13, 1850, by a special charter and operates under a 
Mayor-Council form of govermnent. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the 
primary government, (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable, and (c) other organizations for wliich the primary government is not 
accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary 
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to 
be misleading or incomplete. Component units are legally separate organizations for which 
the elected officials of the primary govemment are financially accountable. In addition, 
component units can be other organizations for w-hich the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the primary govemment are such that exclusion would cause the reporting 
entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

These financial statements present only the financial activity of the City of Abbeville, the 
primary govemment. They do not include the data of the component units necessary for 
reporting in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Basis of Presentation 

Govenmient-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the City of 
Abbeville, the primary govemment, as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting 
entity% except fiduciary fiinds. The statements distinguish between govemmental and 
business-type activities. Govemmental acti\ities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergovemmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are 
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to extemal parties for goods or ser\dces. The 
City's intemal service funds are a govemmental activity. Internal service fund activity is 
eliminated to avoid "doubling up" revenues and expenses. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's 
govemmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a 
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular flmction. Program 
revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services 
offered by the programs, and (b) grants and contributions tliat are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified 
as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINTJED) 

Fund Finaneial Statements 

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an 
independent fiseal and aceounting entity with a separate set of self-balancing accounts. Fund 
accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid 
management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual 
provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and 
managerial requirements. Fund financial statements report detailed information about the 
City. 

The various fimds of the City are classified into two categories; governmental and 
proprietary. The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major governmental and 
enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. A fund is considered major if it is the 
primary operating fund of the City or meets the following eriteria: 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual 
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding 
total for all funds of that category or ty^pe: and 

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual 
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of tlie corresponding 
total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined 

The major funds of the City are described below: 

Governmental Fmids -

The General Fund is the general operating flind of the City. It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be aeeounted for in another fund. 

The Sales Tax special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds of a one and one-quarter 
pereent sales and use tax that is legally restricted to expenditures for specifie purposes. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund t>^es: 

Speeial revenue funds 

Speeial revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources 
(other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specific pmposes. 

Debt sendee funds 

Debt sendee funds are used to account for the accmnulation of resources for, and the 
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINTJED) 

Capital projects funds 

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by 
proprietary funds and trust hinds). 

Proprietary Funds -

Proprietary funds are used to account for ongoing organizations and activities that are 
similar to those often found in the private seetor. The measurement focus is based upon 
determination of net income, finaneial position, and eash flows. The following are the 
City's proprietary fund types: 

Enterprise fun(U 

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) tliat are financed and operated 
in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing 
body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or 
ser\ices to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that 
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and'or net income is 
appropriate for eapital maintenanee, public policy, management eontrol, 
accountability, or other puiposes. The Cit^'^'s enterprise fund is the Utility Fund. 

Internal sendee funds 

Internal seivdee funds are used to aceount for the financing of goods or services 
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the 
governmental unit, or to other governmental units, on a eost-reimbursement basis. 
The City's internal sendee fund is the Employee Health Insurance Fund. 

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the 
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

Measurement Focus 

On the govermnent-wide statement of net position and the statement of aetivities, both 
govemmental and business-type aetivities are presented using the economie resources 
measurement focus as defined in item b. below. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINTJED) 

In the fund finaneial statements, the "current finaneial resources" measurement foeus or the 
"economic resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a. All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus. 
Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance 
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable 
financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their 
measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period. 

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources" measurement focus. The 
accounting objectives of tliis measurement foeus are the determination of operating 
income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. 
All assets and liabilities (whether eurrent or noncurrent) assoeiated with their 
activities are reported. Proprietaiy^ fund equity is elassified as net position. 

Basis of Accounting 

In the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, both 
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the acerual basis of accounting. 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exehange and exehange-like transactions are 
recognized when the exchange takes place. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available 
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities 
of the current period. For this purpose, the govemment considers revenues to be available if 
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures 
(ineluding eapital outlay) generally are recorded when a liability is incmred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt seivTce expenditures are recorded only when payment is di^. 

The proprietary fund utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the 
liability is incurred or economic asset used. 

Program revenues 

Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities are derived directly from the 
program itself or from parties outside the City's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program 
revenues reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the City's general revenues. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINTJED) 

Allocation of indirect expenses 

The City reports all direet expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direet 
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a funetion. Indireet expenses of other 
functions are not allocated to those functions, but are reported separately in the Statement of 
Aetivities. Depreciation expense is speeifically identified by funetion and is included in the 
direct expense of each function. Interest on general long-term debt is consi(kred an indirect 
expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities 

Assets, Liabilities and Equity 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 

For purposes of the Statement of Net Position, cash and interest-bearing deposits include 
all demand accounts, savings accounts, and certificates of deposits of the City. For the 
purpose of tlie proprietary fmid statement of cash flows, "cash and cash equivalents" 
inelude all demand and savings aecounts, and certifieates of deposit or short-tenn 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased. 

Investments 

Under state law the City may deposit flinds with a fiseal agent organized under the laws 
of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, or the laws of the 
United States. The City may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes and bills, 
government backed agency securities, or certificates and time deposits of state banks 
organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. 

Interfund receivables and payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds 
that may result in amoimts owed betw^een funds. Those related to goods and ser\Tces type 
transactions are classified as "due to and from other funds." Short-term interfund loans 
are reported as "interfund receivables and payables." Long-term interfund loans 
(noneurrent portion) are reported as "advanees from and to other funds." Interfund 
receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in 
the Statement of Net Position. 

Reeeivables 

In the goveniment-wide statements, receivables eonsist of all revenues earned at year-end 
and not yet received. Major receivable balances for the govermnental activities include ad 
valorem and sales and use taxes. Business-type aetivities report customer's utility ser\Tce 
receivables as their major receivables. Uncollectible ad valorem taxes or utility service 
receivables are recognized as bad debts at the time information becomes available which 
would indicate the uneollectibility of the partieular receivable. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINTJED) 

Aecounts receivable is stated at cost, net of any allowance for doubtful accounts. The 
City maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the 
failure of customers to make required payments. The City reviews the aceounts 
receivable on a periodic basis and makes allowances where there is doubt as to the 
collectability of individual balances. In evaluating the collectability of individual 
receivable balances, the City considers many factors, including the age of the balanee, the 
customer's payment history, its current credit-worthiness and current economic trends. 
Based on the management's evaluation of eaeh eustomer, the City considers all 
remaining accounts receivable to be fully collectible and, therefore, did not provide for an 
allowance for doubtful accounts. 

Prepaid Items 

Payments ma(k to vendors for seivTces that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 
2020, are recorded as prepaid items. 

Inventories 

Inventory of the Utility Fund consists of supplies and parts that are valued at weighted 
average cost. Inventory of the General Fund consists of gas, diesel and oil, at the motor 
pool bani, that is valued at weighted average cost. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which incline property, plant, equipment, and infrastnwture assets, are 
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the 
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are eapitalized at historical cost or 
estimated cost if historical is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets 
at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The City maintains a 
threshold level of $ 1,000 for capitalizing capital assets. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Prior to January 1, 2003, governmental 
funds' infrastructure assets were not capitalized. These assets have been valued at 
estimated historical cost. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an alloeated expense in the 
statement of activities, with aceumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net 
position. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the 
straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset 
is as follows: 

Buildings 40-50 years 
Equipment 5-10 years 
Utility system and improvements 5-40 years 
Infrastructure 20-50 years 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINTJED) 

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are 
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. 
Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are aecounted for the same as in the 
govemment-vvide statements. 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets include cash and interest-bearing deposits of the proprietary fimd that 
are legally restricted as to their use. The restricted assets are related to the utility system 
customer's meter deposits and, when applieable, certain bond proceeds designated for 
electric, water and sewer system improvements. 

Compensated Absenees 

All employees in the classified service shall receive one day of sick leave for each 
calendar month of service up to a maximum of 180 days. On December 31 of each year 
the unused accumulated sick leave earned by an employee shall be carried forward to the 
succeeding year. All aecumulated siek leave shall be forfeited upon termination of 
employment, except in the case of retirement. Retirees are compensated for any unused 
sick leave at the hourly rate being earned by the employee at retirement. 

For all employees, up to 1/3 of the earned, but unused, vacation leave shall be credited to 
the employee's sick leave account. Any remaining vacation leave shall be carried to the 
following year. Upon termination of employment, the employee shall be paid for unused 
vacation. In case of death of the employee, unused vacation shall be paid to the 
beneficiary of the employee. 

For fund financial statements, earned vacation leave and accumulated siek leave that is 
expected to be liqui(feted with expendable available financial resources is reported as an 
expenditure and a eurrent flind liability of the fund that will pay it. In the government-
wide statements, amounts of vested or accumulated sick leave that are not expected to be 
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded as noncurrent 
liabilities. 

Net other post-employment benefit obligations 

In adopting the requirements of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting by Employers for Post - Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, during the 
year ended December 31, 2020, the City recognizes the cost of post-employment 
healthcare benefits in the year when employee services are received, recognizes a liability 
for OPEB obligations, known as the net OPEB liability, on the Statement of Net Position, 
and provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the City's future cash 
flows. Changes in the net OPEB liability will be immediately recognized as OPEB 
expense on the Statement of Activities or reported as deferred inflows/outflows of 
resoiu"ces depending upon the nature of the change. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINTJED) 

Long-term debt 

The aceoimting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are 
reported in the government-wide or fond financial statements. 

All long-term (kbt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are 
reported as liabilities in the govermnent-wide statements. Long-term debt for 
governmental fonds is not reported as liabilities in the fond financial statements. The debt 
proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest 
reported as expenditures. The accounting for proprietary fund long-term debt is the same 
in the fond statements as it is in the government-wide statements. 

Equity Classifications 

In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in 
tliree components: 

a. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding 
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowing that are attributable 
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

b. Restricted net position — Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use 
either by (1) external groups, such as creditors, gmntors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments; or (2) laws through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. 

e. Unrestricted net position - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." 

Fund Equity - Fund Financial Statements 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. GASB Statement No. 54, Fund 
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, provides clearly defined 
fond balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a 
government's fond balance more transparent. The following classifications describe the 
relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the puiposes for which resources 
can be used: 

• Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required 
to be maintained intact. Management has classified inventory and prepaid 
expenditures as being nonspen(Uble as this item is not expected to be converted 
to cash. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINTJED) 

• Restricted: This elassification includes amounts for which the constraints that 
have been placed on the use of resources are either: 

o Externally imposed by creditors (sueh as through debt covenants), 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of otlier governments; or 

o Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Committed: This classification inclu(ks amounts that can only be used for 
specifie purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action (resolution) 
of the members of the City Couneil of Abbeville, which is the entity's highest 
level of decision-making authority. These amounts cannot be used for any other 
purposes unless the Council removes or changes the specified i^e by taking the 
same type of action that was employed when the funds were initially eommitted. 
This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that 
existing resourees have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those 
contractual requirements. The City of Abbeville did not have any committed 
resources as of year-end. 

• Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by tlie City of 
Abbeville's intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither restrieted nor 
committed. This intent should be expressed by the City Council of Abbeville. 
The City has assigned resources in the debt ser\Tce funds for the payment of 
prineipal and interest on outstanding debt. 

• Unassigned: This classifieation is the residual fund balance of the General Fund. 
It also represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that 
has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to speeific purposes within the 
General Fund. 

^Tien fund balance resources are available for a specific purpose in multiple 
classifications, the City of Abbeville will generally use the most restrictive funds first in 
the following order: restricted, eommitted, assigned, and unassigned as they are needed. 
However, the City of Abbeville reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned 
resources first and to defer the use of the other classified funds. 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from 
providing ser\Tces and producing and delivering goods and'or services. It also ineludes 
all revenue and expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital 
financing, or investing activities. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINTJED) 

Expenditures/Expenses 

In the goveminent-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by fiinction for both 
governmental and business-type activities. 

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows; 

Governmental Funds - By Character 
Proprietary Fund - By Operating and Nonoperating 

In the fimd financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of finaneial 
resources. Proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources. 

Interfund Transfers 

Permanent reallocations of resources between funds of tlie reporting entity are classified as 
interfund transfers. For the purposes of the statement of aetivities, all interfund transfers 
between individual governmental funds have been eliminated. 

Revenue Restrictions 

The City has various restrietions plaeed over eertain revenue sources from state or loeal 
requirements. The primary restricted revenue sources include; 

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use 
Sales tax See Note 11 
Ad valorem tax (1.37 mills) City sewer facilities 
VPPJ fire prevention revenue Construction, acquisition, improvement, and 

maintenance of tire department facilities 

Budgets and Budgetary Aceounting 

The City follows these proeedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements. 

1. The Mayor prepares a proposed operating budget for the fiseal year and submits 
it to the City Council not later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each 
fiscal year. 

2. A summary of the proposed budget is published and the publie notified that the 
proposed budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public 
hearing is called. 

3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication 
of the call for the hearing. 
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4. After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all aetion necessary to 
finalize and implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an 
ordinance prior to the commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is 
being adopted. 

5. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, 
program or function to another or involving increases in expenditures resulting 
fi"om revenues exceeding amounts estimated require the approval of the City 
Council. 

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of eaeh fiscal year. 

7. Budgets for the general fund and each special revenue fund are adopted on a 
basis consistent with generally aceepted aceoimting principles (GAAP). 
Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as finally amended by the City 
Council. 

LIse of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in eonformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions tliat affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

NOTE 2 CASH AND INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS 

Under state law, the City may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the 
laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the Union, or the laws of the 
United States. The City may invest in certificates and time deposits of state banks organized 
under Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. 

At December 31, 2020, the City has cash and interest-bearing deposits (book balances) 
totaling $4,530,682 as follows; 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities T otal 

Demand deposits $ 71,683 S 27,832 $ 99,515 
Money market accounts 2,038,146 1,393,021 3,431,167 
Time deposits 100.000 900.000 1.000.000 

$ 2.209.829 S 2.320.853 $4.530.682 
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These deposits are stated at cost, wliich approximates market. Under state law, these deposits 
(or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of 
securities owned by the fiseal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the 
federal deposit insumnce must at all times eqiml the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent 
bank. These seeurities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or 
custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. The City does not have a policy for 
custodial credit risk. Deposit balances (bank balances) of $4,973,943 at December 31, 2020, 
are secured as follows: 

Federal deposit insurance $ 1,000,000 
Pledged securities (Category 3) 5.270.877 

Total $ 6.270.877 

Pledged securities in Category 3 includes uninsured or unregistered investments for which the 
securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the 
City's name. Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) 
Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to 
advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the City that the 
fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

NOTE 3 RECEIVABLES 

Reeeivables at December 31, 2020 totaling $2,661,641 consist of the following: 

Odier 
General Sales Tax Governmental Utility Total 

Accounts S - $ - S - $1,059,554 $1,059,554 
Unbilled utiHty - - - 775,020 775,020 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem 157,086 - 39,275 - 196,361 
Sales - 429,289 - - 429,289 

Franchise fees 147,712 - - - 147,712 
Other 22.953 30.752 - - 53.705 

Totals S 327.751 $460.041 S 39.275 $1.8.34.574 $2.661.641 
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NOTE 4 DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS 

Amounts due from other governmental units consisted of the following at December 31. 
2020: 

City Court of Abbeville for court fines and witness fees 
FEMA 
Housing Authority 
State and local grants for airport improvements 
State and local grants for streetscape project 
State of Louisiana for beer taxes 
Vermilion Parish School Board for resource officer 
Various 

Total 

NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows: 

S 10,695 
950,042 
16,740 
3,750 

96,845 
6,278 
4,872 

16419 

51,105,341 

Balance 
12/31/19 Additions Deletions 

Balance 
12/31/20 

Govermiiental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 5 898,029 $ - S S 898,029 
Construction in progress 238,391 144.257 238,391 144,257 

Other capital assets; 
Building 4,209,940 - - 4,209,940 
Infrastructure 34,495,262 - - 34,495,262 
Equipment, furniture and fbanres 6,309,408 389,876 36,520 6,662,764 
Improvements other than buildings 20.760.225 1.118.566 - 21.878.791 

Total 66.911.255 1,652.699 274.911 68.289.043 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Buildings S 1,777,732 S 93,878 S S 1,871,610 
Infrastructure 28,019,208 708,391 - 28,727,599 
Equipment, furniture and fimires 4,175,727 393,316 26,309 4,542,734 
Improvements other than buildings 14.808.914 416.883 - 15.225,797 

T otal accumulated depreciation 48.781.581 1.612.468 26.309 50.367.740 

Governmental activities, 
Capital assets, net S 18 129.674 $ 40.2,31 S 2,48.602 517.921.303 

(continued) 

29 



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

$ 355,257 
274,073 
513.314 

SI. 142.644 

Balance Balance 
12/31/2019 Additions Deletions 12/31/2020 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land S 70,929 S - S S 70,929 
Construction in progress 193,455 - 193,455 -

Other capital assets: 
Electric system 13,114,809 127,000 - 13,241,809 
Water system 10,737,684 - - 10,737,684 
Sewer system 19,319,224 273,818 - 19,593,042 
Building, machinery and equipment 1.918.920 - - 1.918,920 

Total 45.355.021 400.818 193.455 45.562.384 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Electric system 9,944,287 321,167 - 10,265,454 
Water system 7,670,062 248,505 - 7,918,567 
Sewer system 12,712,464 487.747 - 13,200,211 
Building, machinery and equipment 1.653.896 85.225 . 1.739.121 

T otal accumulated depreciation 31.980.709 1,142.644 _ 33.123,353 

Business-type activities, 
Capital assets, net S 13.374.312 S 1741.8261 S 193.455 S 12.439.031 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 

General government S 304.440 
Police 108,000 
Fire 259,362 
Streets 823,817 
Culture and recreation 116.849 

T otal depreciation expense iJ .612.468 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type aetivities as follows; 

Electric 
Water 
Sewer 

NOTE 6 AD VALOREM TAXES 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. 
Taxes are levied by tlie City in September or October and are actually billed to taxpayers in 
November. Billed taxes beeome delinquent on January 1 of the following year. The City 
bills and collects its own property taxes. Property tax revenues are recognized when levied to 
the extent that they result in current receivables. 
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For the year ended December 31, 2020, taxes of 6.85 mills were levied on property with 
assessed valuations totaling $63,612,923 and were dedicated as follows; 

General corporate purposes 
Public improvement (sewer) 

Total 

5.48 mills 
1.37 mills 
6.85 mills 

Total taxes levied were $435,749. Taxes receivable at December 31, 2020 were $196,361. 

NOTE 7 ACCOUNTS, SALARIES, AND OTHER PAYABLES 

The accounts, salaries, and other payables consisted of the following at December 31, 2020: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued salaries 

Internal service fund claims 

Other liabilities 
Totab 

NOTE 8 CHANGES IN EONG TERM DEBT 

Govermiiental 
Activities 

S 62,696 
23,717 
185,555 
145.292 

S 417,260 

Business-type 

Activities 

S 740,159 
39,704 

25.182 
S 805.045 

Total 

S 802,855 
63,421 

185,555 
170.474 

$1,222,305 

The following is a summary of governmental activities bonds, business-type aetivities bonds, 
capital lease obligations, and compensated absences transactions of the City for the year 
ended December 31. 2020: 

Long-term debt, 12/31,'2019 

Additions 

Retirements 

Long-term debt, 12/31/2020 

General 
Obli^tions 

$3,238,000 

(694,000) 

$2,544,000 

Capital lease Compensated 
Obligations Absences 

146,710 
(48,903) 

$ 694,066 

698 

Total 

$3,932,066 

147,408 
(742,903) 

S 97,807 $ 694,764 $3,336,571 
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NOTE 8 CHANGES IN LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Govenimental aetivities debt at December 31, 2020 is comprised of the following: 

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, due in annual installments 
of $362,000 - $474,000 through March 1, 2022; bearing interest at 
0.50 - 2.25 percent per annum, secured by excess annual revenue. $ 935,000 

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2014, due in annual installments 
of $157,000 - $198,000 throu^ May 1, 2026; bearing interest at 
2.33 percent per annum, secured by annual sales tax revenue. 1,121,000 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2016, due in annual installments 
of $12,000 - 586,000 through March 1, 2026; beting interest at 
1.00 - 2.25 percent per annum, secured by excess annual revenue. 488.000 

Total $ 2,544,000 
The debt ser\ace requirements for these obligations are as follows: 

Govemmental Activities 
Year Ending Bond Bond 

December 31. Principal Interest 

2021 S 714,000 $ 50,035 
2022 733,000 33,614 
2023 265,000 22,239 
2024 271,000 16,059 
2025 277,000 9,742 
2026 284.000 3.274 
Total S 2.544.000 $ 134.963 

NOTE 9 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 

Plan Descriptions 

The City participates in three state-administered cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement 
systems, which together cover substantially all of the City's lull-time employees: Municipal 
Employees' Retirement System (MERS), Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
(MPERS), and Firefighters' Retirement System (FRS) of the State of Louisiana. These 
systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by 
separate boards of trustees. Article 10, Section 29 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the state legislature. The 
systems issue annual, publicly-available financial reports that include financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the systems. Although separately administered 
by their respective boards of trustees, these systems are established and regulated by aets of 
the Louisiana Legislature with respect to membership and eontribution requirements, plan 
benefits, and actuarial determination of funding requirements as provided by the state 
eonstitution. 
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Additional disclosures with respect to GASB 68 to the City's participation in these systems 
are provided below. The reports for MERS, MPERS, and FRS may be obtained at 
www.mersla.com,www.lampers.org, and www^lafirefightersret.com respeetively. The 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) issues a publiely available financial 
report, which may be obtained by w-riting to that system at 9737 Office Park Boulevard, 
Baton Rouge, LA 70809. The finaneial report for the Municipal Police Employees' 
Retirement System (MPERS) may be obtained by writing to that system at 8401 United Plaza 
Boulevard Suite 270, Baton Rouge, LA 70809-7017. The financial report for the Firefighters' 
Retirement System (FRS) may be obtained by writing to that system at P.O. Box 94095, 
Capitol Station, Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9095. 

Plan Description - MERS 

MERS was originally established by Act 356 of the 1954 regular session of the Legislature of 
the State of Louisiana and is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with 
separate assets and benefit provisions. All employees of the City of Abbeville are members of 
Plan B. All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week who are not covered by 
another pension plan and are paid wEolly or in part from municipal funds and all elected 
municipal officials are eligible to participate in MERS. 

Plan Description - MPERS 

All hill-time police department employees engaged in law enforcement are required to 
participate in MPERS providing he or she does not have to pay social security and providing 
he or she meets the statutory criteria. MPERS provi(ks retirement benefits for municipal 
police officers. The projections of benefit payments in tlie calculation of the total pension 
liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees through 
MPERS in accordance with benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide 
benefits that are in force at the measurement date. Benefit provisions are authorized within 
Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211-11:2233. 

Plan Description — FRS 

The Firefighters' Retirement System (FRS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-
employer plan. Membership in the System is a condition of employment for any full-time 
firefighters who earn at least $375 per month and are employed by any municipality, parish, 
or fire protection district of the State of Louisiana in addition to employees of the 
Firefighters' Retirement System. The System provides retirement benefits for their members. 
The projections of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes 
all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees through the System in 
accordance with benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are 
in force at the measurement date. 
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Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 434 of 1979 and amended by LRS 11:2251-
11:2272. The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for 
general information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for 
more complete information. 

Any person who beeomes an employee as defined in RS 11:2252 on and after January 1, 
1980 shall become a member as a condition of employment. 

No person who has attained age 50 or over shall become a member of the System, unless the 
person becomes a member by reason of a merger or unless the System received an application 
for membership before the applicant attained the age of fifty. No person who has not attained 
the age of 18 years shall become a member of the System. 

Any person who has retired from service under any retirement system or pension fund 
maintained basically for public officers and employees of the state, its agencies or political 
subdivisions, and who is receiving retirement benefits therefrom may become a member of 
this System, provided the person meets all other requirements for membership. Service credit 
from the retirement system or pension plan from which the member is retired shall not be 
used for reciprocal recognition of service with this System, or for any other purpose in order 
to attain eligibility or increase the amount of service credit in this System. 

Benefits Provided 

Retirement Benefits - MERS fPlm B) 

Members with ten years of creditable service may retire at age sixty; members with thirty 
years of serviee may retire at any age. The monthly retirement allowance is equal to two 
percent of the member's final compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service; 
elected officials receive an additional one-half percent of final compensation for each year of 
siwh elected service. 

Employees whose first employment making them eligible for membership occurs on or after 
January 1, 2013 will become members of Tier 2. Normal retirement eligibility in Tier 2 is at 
age 67 with seven years of service credit, at age 62 with ten years of service credit, or age 55 
with thirty years of service credit. Members are eligible for an actuarially reduced early 
retirement at twenty-five years of service eredit. Retirement benefits are based on a 2% 
accrual rate. Employee contributions are set by the Board of Trustees within a range of 4% to 

Final compensation is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined 
months that produce the highest average for a member whose first employment made him or 
her eligible for membership in the system on or before June 30, 2006. Final compensation is 
the employee's average salary over the 60 consecutive or joined months that produee the 
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highest average for a member whose first employment made him or her eligible for 
membership in the system after June 30, 2006. Employees wLo terminate with at least the 
amount of ereditable ser\dee stated above, and do not withdraw their employee contributions, 
may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to their date of 
termination. 

Retirement Benefits - MPERS 

Members of MPERS with membership beginning prior to January 1, 2013 are eligible for 
regular retirement after he or she has been a member of MPERS and has 25 years of 
ereditable service at any age or has 20 years of creditable serviee and is age 50 or has 12 
years of creditable senice and is age 55. A member is eligible for early retirement after he or 
she has been a member of MPERS for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an 
actuarially reduced benefit. Members are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for 
life, equal to three and one-third percent (3.33%) of the member's final compensation 
(employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest 
average) multiplied by the member's years of creditable service. 

Members of MPERS with membership beginning on or after January 1, 2013 are eligible for 
regular retirement, early retirement, disability and survivor benefits based on Hazardous Duty 
and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is 
eligible for regular retirement after he or she has been a member of MPERS and has 25 years 
of creditable service at any age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 55. Under the 
Non-Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he or she has 
been a member of MPERS and has 30 years of creditable service at any age, 25 years of 
creditable service at age 55 or 10 years of creditable service at age 60. Under botli sub plans, 
a member is eligible for early retirement after he or she has been a member of MPERS for 20 
years of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. 

Under the Hazar(L)us and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are three percent 
and two and a half percent, respeetiv'ely, of av'erage final compensation (av'erage monthly 
earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service was 
interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salar}^ 

In 1999, the State Legislature authorized MPERS to establish an Initial Benefit Option 
program. This is available to MPERS members who are eligible for regular retirement but 
have not participated in DROP. This program provides both a one-time single sum payment 
of up to 36 months of the regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly 
retirement benefit for life. 

Retirement Benefits - FRS 

All full-time firefighters for the City who are engaged in fire protection are eligible to 
participate in FRS. A member wfto has completed 20 years of creditable service, has been a 
member at least 1 year, and has reached the age of 50 is eligible for retirement. A member 
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with at least 12 years of service who has reached the age of 55 is eligible for retirement 
provided he has been a member for at least 1 year. Upon retirement the benefit amount is 3-
1/3 percent of average final compensation multiplied by years of ereditable service, not to 
exceed his average final compensation. Average final eompensation is the member's average 
annual earned compensation for any period of 36 successive or joined months of sen-ice that 
produces the highest average. The system also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits 
are established by state statute. 

Deferred Retirement Option 

In lieu of terminating employment and aceepting a sendee retirement allowance, any member 
of MERS who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option 
plan (DROP) for up to tliree years and defer the receipt of benefits. A MERS member may 
participate in DROP only once. During participation in the plan, employer contributions are 
payable but employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefits that would be 
payable, had the person elected to cease employment, are credited to the MERS member's 
individual DROP aecount. Interest is eamed when the member has completed DROP 
participation. Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the participation 
period, the member may receive a lump sum from the account or a true annuity based on the 
account balance. If employment is not terminated at the end of the three year DROP 
participation period, payments into the DROP account cease and the person resumes active 
eontributing membership in MERS. 

A member of MPERS is eligible to enter DROP when he or she is eligible for regular 
retirement based on the members' sub plan participation. At the entry date into DROP, 
employee and employer contributions cease. The amount deposited into tlie DROP account 
for MPERS members is equal to the benefit eomputed under the retirement plan eleeted by 
participant dais of application. Interest is eamed when the MPERS member has completed 
DROP participation. 

Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the participation period, the 
MPERS member may reeeive a lump sum from the aecount or a true annuity based on the 
account balance. 

A member of FRS may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for 
up to 36 months, after eompleting 20 years of creditable service and age 50 or 25 years at any 
age. Upon commencement of participation in the deferred retirement option plan, employer 
and employee contributions to the System cease. The monthly retirement benefit that would 
have been payable is paid into tlie deferred retirement option plan account. Upon termination 
of employment, from the account or an amiuity based on the deferred retirement option plan 
account balance in addition to his regular monthly benefit. If employment is not terminated at 
the end of the 36 months, the participant resumes regular contributions to the System. No 
payments may be made from the deferred retirement option plan account until the participant 
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retires. Effective June 16, 1999, members eligible to retire who do not choose to participate in 
DROP may elect to receive, at the time of retirement, an initial benefit option (IBO) in an 
amount up to 36 months of benefits, with an actuarial reduction of their future benefits. Such 
amounts may be withdrawn or remain in the IBO account eaming interest at the same rates as 
the DROP account. 

Disability Benefits 

A member of MERS Plan B is eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he or she has 
at least 10 years of ereditable service. Twenty years of creditable service are required in 
order for a member to have a vested disability benefit. A disabled member receives a 
nonml retirement allowance if eligible under regular retirement provisions; if he is not 
eligible for a normal retirement allowance, he receives a disability benefit equal to the 
lesser of: 

1. Thirty pereent of his final average compensation or two pereent of his final 
average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable servdce; whichever is 
greater; and 

2. Two percent of his final average compensation multiplied by his years of 
creditable service projected to his earliest normal retirement age. 

A member of MPERS is eligible to retire and receiv'e a disability benefit if he or she has been 
certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. If the disability incurred is job-
related, there is no minimum ereditable serviee requirement. If the disability is non-job-
related, a minimum of 10 years of creditable service is required if the member was employed 
on or after July 1, 2008. Members of MPERS employed prior to July 1, 2008 must have a 
minimum of 5 years of creditable sendee to be eligible to retire with disability benefits if the 
disability incurred is non-job-related. The disability benefit reeeived by a MPERS member is 
equal to three percent of his or her final average eompensation multiplied by years of 
creditable service (not less than 40%, nor more than 60% of final average compensation). At 
the time the disabled MPERS member reaches normal retirement age, he or she will have the 
option to continue to receive the disability retirement benefit or to receive his or her vested 
retirement benefit. 

A member of FRS is eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he or she has been 
officially ceitified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. Any member totally 
disabled from injury in the line of duty, shall be paid, on a monthly basis, an annual pension 
of 60.0% of the average final eompensation being received at the time of disability. Any 
member who has become disabled or incapacitated because of continued illness or as a result 
of any injury receiv'ed, even though not in the line of duty, and who has 5 years of creditable 
service, but is not eligible for retirement under the provisions of R. S. 11:2256 may apply for 
retirement under the provisions of R. S. 11:2258 and shall be retired on 75.0% of the 
retirement salary to wfiich he would be entitled under R. S. 11:2256 if he were otherwise 
eligible there under or 25.0% of the member's average salary, whichever is greater. 
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Any retired member or DROP plan participant who becomes disabled for any reason 
provided for by law shall be permitted to apply for conversion of a ser\ace retirement to a 
service comiected disability retirement imder R. S. ll;2258(B)(l)(e). Should a member who 
is on disability retirement die and leave a surviving spouse, the surviving spouse shall receive 
a benefit of $200 per month. When the member takes disability retirement, he may, in 
addition, take an actuarially reduced benefit in which ease the member's surviving spouse 
shall receive 50% of the disability benefit being paid immediately prior to the death of the 
disabled retiree. If the surviving spouse remarries prior to age 55, such benefits shall cease; 
however, the benefits shall resume upon subsequent divorce or death of the new spouse, and 
the approval of the board of trustees. 

SunTvor's Benefit 

The sur\iving spouse of a MERS Plan B member who was eligible for normal retirement 
at the time of deatli receives an autonwtic option two benefit. Tlie surviving spouse of a 
member with five or more years of creditable service and not eligible for normal 
retirement at the time of death receives either 30% of the member's final compensation 
payable to the spouse when they attain age 60 or an actuarial equivalent of 30% of the 
deceased member's final compensation, but not less than 15% of such final 
compensation. Survivor benefits are also payable to tlie surviving spouses of former 
members who have not withdrawn their accumulated contributions and who have at least 
twenty years of creditable service. The benefits payable are the actuarial equiv^alent of the 
Option 2 benefits that would have become payable to the surviving spouse at the time the 
former member would have begun receiving deferred normal retirement benefits, had the 
MERS Plan B member surv ived until that date, elected Option 2, and died at that time. 

Survivor benefits for MPERS members are payable to the surviving spouse or surviving 
minor child'children of a deceased aetiv'e contributing member or a deceased disability 
retiree. Survivor benefits are not payable to survivors of retirees receiving benefits under the 
provisions of early or normal serviee retirement. The maximum benefit for a surviving spouse 
of a MPERS member is equal to the regular retirement formula, regardless of age, but not less 
than 40% or more than 60% of the deceased member's final average compensation. There is 
no requirement for minimum years of ereditable service. 

If the MPERS member is killed in the line of duty, the surviving spouse shall receiv'e a 
benefit equal to 100% of the deceased member's final average compensation, less any 
survivor benefits payable to a child or children. Eaeh surviving minor child of the MPERS 
member will receive a benefit eqiml to 10% of deceased member's final av'erage 
compensation or $200 per month, whichever is greater. Benefits for a surviving child cease 
upon the child's attaimnent of age 18 or upon marriage, whichever occurs first. The benefit 
may continue after age 18 if the child meets certain educational or disability requirements. 
The surviving minor child may receive an increased benefit if there is no surviving spouse of 
the MPERS member. 
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Sundvor benefits for FRS are payable to survivors of a deeeased member who dies and is not 
eligible for retirement as follows. If any member is killed in the line of duty and leaves a 
surviving eligible spouse, the spouse is entitled to an annual benefit equal to two-thirds of the 
deceased member's final compensation. If any member dies from a cause not in the line of 
duty, the surviving spouse is entitled to an annual benefit equal to 3% of the deceased 
member's average final compensation multiplied by his total years of ereditable ser\dee; 
however, in no event is the annual benefit less than 40% nor more than 60% of the deceased 
member's average final eompensation. Children of the deceased member are entitled to the 
greater of S200 per month or 10% of average final compensation (not to exceed 100% of 
average final compensation) until reaching the age of eighteen or until the age of twenty-two 
if emolled full-time in an institution of higher learning, unless the surviving child is 
physically handicapped or mentally retarded in which case the benefit is payable regardless of 
age. If a deeeased member dies leaving no surviving spouse, but at least one minor child, 
each child is entitled to receive forty percent of the deceased's average final eompensation, 
not to exceed an aggregate of sixty percent of average final compensation. 

Cost of Living Increases 

MERS is authorized under state law to grant an annual cost of living adjustment to members 
who have been retired for at least one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's 
original benefit and may only be granted if suffieient funds are available. The cost of living 
increase must be paid fi"om investment ineome in excess of normal requirements. 

MPERS is autliorized to provide anniml cost of living adjustments to members who have 
been retired for at least one full fiscal year. The adjustment cannot exceed 3% in any given 
year. The Board is authorized to provide an additional 2% COLA, computed on the member's 
original benefit, to all regular retirees, disability, surviv'ors, and beneficiaries who are 65 
years of age or older on the cut-off date which determines eligibility. MPERS members who 
elect early retirement are not eligible for a eost of living adjustment until they reach regular 
retirement age. 

The present value of ftiture FRS retirement benefits are based on benefits currently being paid 
by the System and includes previously granted cost of liv'ing increases. The present values do 
not incline provisions for potential future increases not yet authorized by the Board of 
Trustees as they were deemed not to be substantively automatic. 

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank] 
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Contributions 

The MERS, MPERS, and FRS employer contribution rates are established annually under 
LRS 11:101-11:104 by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC), 
taking into consideration the recommendation of the system's actuary. Each plan pays a 
separate actuarially-determined employer contribution rate. For January 1, 2020 through June 
30, 2020, the employer contribution rates for MERS Flan B, MPERS, and FRS were 14.00%; 
32.50%; and 27.75%, respectively. For July 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, the 
employer contribution rates for MERS Plan B, MPERS, and FRS were 15.50%; 32.50%; mid 
32.25%, respectively. Employer contributions to MERS, MPERS, and FRS were $363,111; 
$459,854; and $644,597 respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2020. 

Employees participating in MERS are required to contribute 5.00%; employees participating 
in MPERS are required to contribute 8.00%; employees participating in the FRS are required 
to contribute 10.00%. 

Contributions received by a pension plan from non-employer contributing entities that are not 
in a special funding situation are recorded as revenue by the respective pension plan. MERS 
receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. MPERS receives insurance 
premium tax monies appropriated by the legislature each year based on an actuarial study. 
FRS receives insurance premium tax monies appropriated by the legislature each year based 
on an actuarial study. The City of Abbeville recognizes revenue in an amount equal to its 
proportionate share of the total contributions to the pension plan from these non-employer 
contributing entities. During tlie year ended December 31, 2020, the City of Abbeville 
recognized revenue as a result of support received from non-employer contributing entities of 
$83,505 for its participation in MERS; $82,934 for its participation in MPERS; and $210,648 
for its participation in the FRS. 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

The following table reflects the City's reported net pension liability, pension expense, 
proportionate share of the net pension liabilit}'^ and changes in proportion as of December 31, 
2020: 

MERS MPERS FRS Total 

Net Pension Liability $ 2,721,209 $3,516,513 $ 5,211,409 $11,449,131 

Pension (Benefit) Expense $ 58,581 S 20,525 $ 13,582 $ 92,688 

Proportion of Net 
Pension LiabiHty 3.0028% 0.3805% 0.7518% 

Change in Proportion 
Increase (Decrease) 0.14% 0.03% 0.14% 
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The net pension liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total pension liabilities 
used to calculate the net pension liability were determined by actuarial valuations as of that 
date. The City of Abbeville's proportion of the net pension liability for each retirement 
system was based on a projection of the City of Abbeville's long-term share of contributions 
to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, 
actuarially determined. 

At Deeember 31, 2020, the City of Abbeville reported deferred outflows of resourees and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Defeired Outflows of Resources 

MERS MPERS FRS Total 

Differences between e^^ected and 
actual e?^erience $ - S - S - S 

Changes in assumptions 84,334 83,560 503,779 671,673 

Net difference between projected and 
actual earning on pension plan 
investments 295,427 421,876 573,912 1,291,215 

Changes in: 
Proportion and differences between 

employer contributions and 
proportionate share of; 
Contributions 69,557 194,378 821,686 1,085,621 
Employer contributions subsequent 

to measurement dale 191,166 248,680 354,666 794,512 

Total $ 640,484 S 948,494 $2,254,043 $3,843,021 

Deferred Inflows of Resourees 

MERS MPERS FRS Total 

Differences between expected and 
actual experience S 45,787 $138,513 S 333,425 S 517,725 

Changes in assumptions - 86,782 - 86,782 

Changes in proportion and difterences 
between actual contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 25,299 87.129 367.813 480,241 

Total S 71,086 $312,424 S 701,238 51,084,748 
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During the year ended December 31, 2020, employer contributions totaling $191,166, 
$248,680, and $354,666 were made subsequent to the measurement date for MERS, MPERS, 
and FRS respeetively. These contributions are reported as deferred outflows of resourees and 
will be reeognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 
2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year endina December 31. MERS MPERS FRS Total 

2021 $ 146,815 $ 17,238 $ 86,634 S 250,687 
2022 120,841 146,334 247,557 514,732 
2023 67,306 143,702 289,433 500,441 
2024 43,270 80,116 277,899 401,285 
2025 - - 170,783 170,783 
2026 - - 125.833 125.833 

Total $ 378,232 $ 387,390 $1,198,139 $1,963,761 

Aetuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liabilities for MERS, MPERS, and FRS in the June 30, 2020 actuarial 
valuations were determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
ineluded in the measurement: 

MERS 
Actuarial cost mediod 
Expected remaining service Hves 
Investment rate of return 
Inflation rate 

Projected salary increases 

Cost of living adjustments 

Mortality 

Entry Age Normal 
4 years for Plan B 
6.95% net of investment e^^ense 
2.500% 
7.4% (1 to 4 years service) (including inflation and 
merit) 
4.9% (More than 4 years ser\Tce) (including 
inflation and merit) 
None 

Annuitant and beneficiary Mortality - PubG-
2010(B) Healthy Retiree Table (set equal to 120% 
for males and females). Employees Mortality -
PubG-2010(B) Employee Table (set equal to 
120% for males and females). Disabled Lives 
Mortality - PubNS-2010(B) Disabled Retiree Table 
(set equal to 120% for males and females). 
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MPERS 
Actuarial cost method 
Ej^ected remaining service lives 
Investment rate of return 
Inflation rate 

Projected salary increases 

Cost of living adjustments 

Mortalitv 

Entry Age Normal 
4 years 
6.950% net of investment expense 
2.50% 

Years of Service 
1 -2 
Above 2 

SatoiT Growth Rate 
12.30% 
4.70% 

The present value of future retirement benefits is based 
on benefits currently being paid by die System and 
includes previously granted cost-of-living increases. The 
present values do not include provisions for potential 
fiiture not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

For annuitants and beneficiaries, the Pub-20i0 Public 
Retirement Plan Mortalit>' Table for Safety Below-
Median Healdiy Retirees mult^Eed by 115% for males 
and 125% for females, each with full generational 
projection using the MP2019 sale was used.years tor 
females) was selected. 
For disabled lives, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans 
Mortality T able for Safety Disable Retirees mult^Eed by 
105% for males and 115% for females, each with fuM 
generational projection using the MP2019 scale was 
used. 
For employees, the Pub-2010 PubEc Retirement Plans 
MortaEty T able for Safety Below-Median Employees 
multipEed by 115% for males and 125% for females, 
each with fuM generational projection using the MP2019 
scale was used. 

FRS 
Actuarial cost method 
Expected remaining service lives 
Investment rate of return 
Inflation rate 

Projeeted salary increases 

Entry Age Normal 
7 years 
7.00% net of investment expense 
2.500% 
14.10% in the first two years of service and 5.20% with 3 
or more years of serviee; ineludes inflation and merit 
increases 
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Cost of living adjustments Only those previously granted 

2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for Safety 
Below-Median Employees. 

For annuitants and beneficiaries, mortality was set equal to 

the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for 
Safety Below-Median Healthy Retirees. 

Mortality For disabled retirees, mortality was set equal to the Pub-

2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for Safety 

Disabled Retirees. 

In all cases the base table was multiplied by 105% for 
males and 115% for females, each with full generational 

projection using the appropriate MP2019 scale. 

The forecasted long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of retum by weighting the expected 
future real rates of retum by die target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and 
an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing^diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of 
return for MERS is 7.00%, MPERS is 7.19%, and FRS is 7.94% for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Discount Rates 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for MERS was 6.95%, MPERS was 
6.95%, and FRS was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 
that contributions from plan members whll be made at the current contribution rates and that 
contributions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved 
by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the actuaiy. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of retum for each major asset class included in the target asset 
allocation for MERS, MPERS and FRS as of June 30, 2020 are summarized m the following table; 

Expected Rate of Retum 

Asset Class 
Target Asset 
Allocation 

Long-Term Expected Portfolio 
Real Rate of Retimi 

MERS MPERS FRS MERS MPERS FRS 
Fixed income 38% 34% 31% 1.67% 0.54% 2.20%o 
Equity 53% 48% 54% 2.33% 3.08% 6.70% 
Alternatives 9% 18% 15% 0.40% 1.02% 7.25% 
Real assets 0% 0% 0% 0.00% 0.00% 4.22% 
Totals 100% 100% 100% 

Inflation 2.60% 2.55% 2.50% 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Retum 7.00% 7.19% 7.59% 
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Based on those assumptions, the net position of MERS, MPERS, and FRS were projeeted to 
be available to make all projected iixture benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in 
the Discount Rate 

The following table presents the City of Abbeville's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability using the discount rate of 6.95% for MERS, 6.95% for MPERS, and 7.00% for FRS 
as well as what the City of Abbeville's proportionate share of the net pension liability would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower (5.95% for 
MERS, 5.95% for MPERS, and 6.00% for FRS) or one percentage-point higher (7.95% for 
MERS, 7.95% for MPERS, and 8.00% for FRS) than the current rate: 

Current 
1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1 % Increase 

MERS $ 3,622,436 S 2,721,209 S 1,958,646 
MPERS 4,940,325 3,516,513 2,326,264 
FRS 7,527,829 5,211,409 3,277,882 

Total S 16.090.590 S 11.449.131 S 7.562.792 

Pension Plan Fidueiarv Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plans' fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued financial reports for MERS, MPERS and FRS and can be obtained on the 
plans' respective websites or on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website: www.lla.la.gov. 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

At December 31, 2020, payables to MERS, MPERS, and FRS were $29,633, $52,354, and 
$79,464, respectively for employee and employer legally-required contributions. 
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The proceeck of the One and One Quarter percent sales and use tax levied by the City are 
dedicated for the following purposes: 

One half of one percent sales and use tax (2020 - $1,497,038; 2019 - $1,413,336) for opening, 
eonstrueting, paving, resurfacing and improving streets, alleys, sidewalks, sewers, lighting 
and power plants; constructing and improving drains, drainage canals and sub-surface 
drainage; constructing and purchasing fire department stations and equipment; constructing 
and piu"chasing police department stations and equipment; eonstrueting and purchasing 
garbage disposal and health and sanitation equipment and facilities; constructing public 
buildings; purchasing, constructing and improving public parks and recreational facilities and 
acquiring the necessary equipment and furnishings therefore; purchasing equipment for eivil 
defense; constructing, acquiring or improving any work of permanent public improvement; 
and purchasing and acquiring all equipment and furnishing for the public works buildings 
improvements and faeilities in the City. 

One half of one percent sales and use tax (2020 - $1,497,038; 2019 - $1,413,336) for paying a 
portion of the salaries and benefits of City employees. 

One quarter of one percent sales and use tax (2020 - $748,519; 2019 - $706,668) shall be 
alloeated periodically for the purpose of increasing the salaries for public safety employees of 
the City. 

One half of one percent sales and i^e tax (2020 - $1,497,038; 2019 - $223,383) shall be 
allocated periodically for the purpose of increasing the salaries of City employees. 

NOTE 11 SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE ENTERPRISE FUND 

The City maintains one enterprise fund with three departments that provide eleetricity, water, 
and sewerage sendees. Segment information for the year ended December 31, 2020 follows: 

Electric Water Sewerase Total 

Operating revenues $12.271,063 $1.919.963 $1.893.081 S 16.084.107 

Operating expenses: 
Depreciation 355,257 274,073 513,314 1,142,644 
Other 8.637.303 1.587.850 1.418.426 11.643.578 

T otal operating 
expenses 8.992.560 1.861.923 1.931.740 12.786.222 

Operating income $ 3.278.503 $ 58.040 S 138.6591 S 3.297.885 

NOTE 12 INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

The City has established a partially self-fiinded internal sendee fund to accumulate monies 
for the payment of health care claims of the City employees and their dependents. An integral 
part of tliis self-funded healtli insurance program is tlie procurement of both specific and 
aggregate Stop-Loss insuranee. The City's self-insured retention is $75,000 per covered 
individual. 



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 13 COMPENSATION OF CITY OFFICIALS 

A detail of compensation paid to the Mayor and Council for the year ended December 31, 
2020 follows: 

Mark Piazza, Mayor S 78,308 
Francis Plaisance, Councilman-at-large 16,725 
Roslyn White, Councilman 15,400 
Terry Broussard, Councilman 15,400 
R. Brady Broussard, Jr., Councilman 15,400 
Francis Touchet. Councilman 15,400 

S 156,633 

NOTE 14 RESTRICTED ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE (UTILITY FUND) 

Restricted assets consisted of the following at December 31, 2020: 

Customers' deposits Si 003.891 

NOTE 15 POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSUTIANCE BENEFITS 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

Plan description - The City of Abbeville (the City) provides certain continuing health care 
and life insuranee benefits for its retired employees. The City of Abbeville's OPEB Plan (the 
OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the City. The 
authority to establish and/or amend the obligation of the employer, employees and retirees 
rests with the City. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section P52 
Postemphyment Benefits Other Than Pensions—Reporting For Benefits Not Provided 
Through Tmsts That Meet Specified Criteria—Defined Benefit. 

Benefits Provided — Medical and life insurance benefits are provicfcd through comprehensive 
plans and are made available to employees upon actual retirement. Employees retirement 
eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: attainment of Medical benefits are 
provided through a medieal plan and are made available to employees upon actual retirement. 
The employees are covered by one of three retirement systems: first, the Municipal 
Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) 
provisions are as follows: 25 years of sendee at any age; or, age 60 and 10 years of sendee; 
second, the Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana, and, third, the Munieipal Police 
Retirement System of Louisiana. Both the Fire and Police systems have retirement eligibility 
(D.R.O.P. entiyO provisions as follows: 25 years of sendee at any age; age 50 and 20 years of 
sendee; or, age 55 and 12 years of sendee. For each system, employees hired on and after 
January 1, 2013 must meet the following retirement (D.R.O.P. entry) requirements: age 55 
and 30 years of senice; age 62 and 10 years of sendee; or, age 67 and 7 years of serviee. 
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Life insurance coverage is provi(kd to retirees and 100% of the blended rate (active and 
retired) is paid by the employer. The amount of insurance coverage while aetive is continued 
after retirement, but insurance coverage amounts are reduced by 50% upon retirement. 

Employees covered by benefit terms - At December 31, 2020, the following employees were 
covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 45 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active employees 143 

Total OPEB Liability 

The City's total OPEB liability of $22,740,704 was measured as of December 31, 2020 and 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs - The total OPEB liability in the Deeember 31, 
2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and otlier 
inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 2.0% 
Salary increases 3.0%, including inflation 
Discount rate 2.74% annually (Begimiing of Year to Determine ADC) 

2 .12%, annually (As of End of Year Measurement Date) 
Healtheare cost trend rates 5.5% annually until year 2030, then 4.5%, except the 

trend is 3% for Medicare Advantage rates 
Mortality SOA RP-2014 Table 

The discount rate was based on the average of the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Obligation 
municipal bond index as of December 31, 2020, the end of the applicable measurement 
period. 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Table without projection with 50%/50% 
unisex blend. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2020 valuation were based on the 
results of ongoing evaluations of the assumptions from January 1, 2009 to December 31, 
2020. 
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Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at December 31,2019 S19,664,593 
Changes for the year: 

Ser\4ce cost 293,301 
Interest 542,828 
Differences between expected and actual ej^erience 337,699 
Changes in assumptions 2,265,355 
Benefit payments and net transfers (363,072) 

Net changes 3,076.111 

Balance at December 31, 2020 S22.740.704 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability^ to changes in the discount rate - The following 
presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (1.12%) 
or 1-pereentage-point higher (3.12%) than the eurrent diseount rate: 

1.0% Current 1.0% Increase 
(1.12%) (2.12%) (3-12%) 

Total OPEB liabiEty S26.531.192 S22.740.704 S19.723.264 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability^ to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates - The 
following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total 
OPEB liability would be if it were ealculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-
pereentage-point lower (4.5%) or 1-pereentage-point higher (6.5%) than the current 
healthcare trend rates: 

1.0% Current 1.0% Increase 
(4.5%) (5.5%) (6.5%) 

Total OPEB Hability S19.908.295 S22.740.704 S26.247.724 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to OPEB 
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For the year ended December 31, 2020, the City reeognized OPEB expense of $958,890. At 
December 31, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to OPEB from the following sowces; 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Total 

$ 1,579,663 $ 395,139 
1,941,733 3,386,108 

$ 3..52L396 $ .3.781.247 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years ending December 31: 

2021 122,761 
2022 122.761 
2023 122,761 
2024 122,761 
2025 122,761 

Thereafter (873,656) 

NOTE 16 CONTRACT FOR ELECTRIC POWER - ENTERPRISE EUND 

The City has entered into an agreement with Exelon Generation Company, LLC for electric 
power supply sen-ice. This agreement is effective from June 1, 2019 through May 31, 2021. 

NOTE 17 CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

On March 11, 2020, the City of Abbeville entered into a capital lease agreement with Ford 
Motor Credit for the acquisition of (5) Police Units. The capital lease required three annual 
payments of $48,904 beginning on March 11, 2020. 
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Interfund transfers eonsist of the following at December 31, 2020: 

Transfers In Transfers Out 
Governmental funds; 

General fund S 8,959,285 $ 9,592 
Special revenue fonds: 

Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 1,757 4,173,460 
Maintenanee and Operation - Fire Department Fund - 87,897 

Debt sendee funds: 
2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds Fund 481,380 
2014 Sales Tax Revenue Bonffc Fund 202,125 
2016 Revenue Bonds Fund 87,897 

Capital projects funds: 
Airport Improvement Fund 9,592 1,757 

Total governmental fiinds 9,742,036 4,272,706 

Proprietary funds: 
Enterprise Fund 604,442 6,073,772 

Total S 10,346,478 $10,346,478 

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to 
collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and to (b) use 
unrestricted revenues colleeted to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in 
accordance with budgetary authorizations. 

NOTE 19 COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO MAYOR 

A detail of compensation, benefits, and other payments made to Mayor, Mark Piazza for the 
year ended December 31, 2020 follows: 

Mark Piazza, Mayor 

Purpose Amount 

Salary $ 78,308 
Benefits - Health insurance 8,704 
Benefits - Retirement 11,556 
Vehicle Provided by Government 63 

$ 98,631 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Eitigation 

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outeome of some of these lawsuits 
has been determined, as of the date of this audit report, the City has not appropriated any 
funds in payment of these liabilities. There are also pending lawsuits which may result in 
judgments against the City. As of December 31, 2020, the amounts, if any, resulting from the 
settlement of these pending claims could not be reasonably determined by management and 
legal counsel. 

Grant Audits 

The City receives federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and 
audit by federal and state agencies. Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement 
by these agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms and conditions of the 
appropriate agency. In the opinion of City management, such disallowances, if any, will not 
be significant to the City's financial statements. 

LItility Relocation Grants 

In prior years, the City utilized federal funding under Act 319 to pay its share of the cost to 
relocate electric, water, and sewer facilities to accommodate tlie expansion of Higliway 14. 
As part of the funding agreement the City is prohibited from locating additional longitudinal 
facilities within any right-of-way owned by the State of Louisiana until the City reimburses 
the Department of Transportation the full amount of costs expended on the City's behalf, 
which totaled $590,359. 

NOTE 21 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

We have evaluated events subsequent to the balanee sheet date through May 12, 2021, the 
date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

NOTE 22 COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

In December 2020, a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) was reported to have surfaced 
in China. The World Health Organization has characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic. The 
COVID-i9 outbreak is disrupting supply chains and affecting production and sales across a 
range of industries. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the City's operational and 
financial performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and 
spread of tlie outbreak, impact on our resources, employees and vendors all of which are 
uncertain and cannot be predicted. At this point, the extent to whieh COVTD-19 may impaet 
the City's finaneial eondition or results of operations is uneertain. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31,2019 

2020 

Revenues; 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Fines and forfeitures 
Misceltoneous 

T otal revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current -

Budset 
Original Final Actual 

367,000 
581,000 
195,000 
75,000 

482.000 

367,000 
588,000 
173,500 
60,000 

448.500 

375,349 
595,589 
169,292 
59,325 

470.315 

1.700.000 1.637,000 1,669.870 

Variance -
Positive 

(Ne^tive) 

8,349 
7,589 

(4,208) 
(675) 

21.815 

2019 
Actual 

369,567 
584,714 
237,286 

60,243 
559,207 

32.870 1.811.017 

General government 1,818,500 "b
o o
 

p
 

o
 

o
 

o
 

1,750,171 49,829 1,832,723 
Public safety: 

Police 3,485,000 3,425,000 3,465,623 (40,623) 3,027,537 
Fire 3,658,000 3,875,000 3,869,532 5,468 3,359,799 

Higliways and streets 1.180.000 1,122,000 1,070,737 51,263 1,145,928 
Cuhure and recreation 443,000 419,000 401,179 17,821 445,933 

Capital outlay 12.500 30.000 31.299 (1.299) 762.907 

T otal expenditures 10,597.000 10.671,000 10,588,541 82.459 10.574.827 

Deficiency of revenues 

over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 

T ransfers in 

Transfers out 

(8.897.000) (9.034.000) (8.918.671) 

8,817,000 9,077,000 
(60.000) 

8,959,285 
(9.592) 

115.329 (8.763.810) 

142,285 
(9.592) 

Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending 

317.684 

(217,000) 

317.684 

31,022 

317.684 

248.022 

,011,553 
(18.028) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 9.017.000 8.817.000 8.949.693 132.693 7.993.525 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources 
over expenditures and 
other financing uses 120,000 

S 437.684 S 100.684 8 348.706 

(770,285) 

1.087.969 

248.022 8 317.684 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Sales Tax Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31,2019 

2020 
Variance -

Bud^t Positive 2019 
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual 

Revenues: 
Sales tax $4,900,000 $5,075,000 $5,239,633 S 164,633 $3,756,727 
Intergovemmental - state and local 20,000 564,000 555,868 (8,132) 25,000 
Miscellaneous - interest and other 2.000 2.000 1.919 (81) 11.378 

T otal revenues 4.922.000 5.641.000 5.797.420 156.420 3.793.105 

Expenditures: 
Current -

General govemment 25,000 46,000 19,932 26,068 8,242 
Public safetv: 

Police 41,000 32,000 35,386 (3,386) 16,594 
Fire 40,000 30,000 15,965 14,035 34.674 

Highways and streets 213,000 161,000 214,337 (53,337) 184,489 
CulUire and recreation 55,000 20,000 5,204 14,796 7,956 

Capital outlay 695,000 1,239,000 1,092,796 146,204 416,105 
Debt seivdce -

Principal - - 48,903 (48,903) 46,373 
Interest - - - - 2.551 

T otal expenditures 1.069.000 1.528.000 1.432.523 95.477 716.984 

Excess of revenues 
over expendttures 3.853,000 4.113.000 4.364.897 251.897 3.076.121 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds of capital lease - - 146,710 146,710 -
Transfers in - 60,000 - 1,757 1,757 20.000 
T ransfers out -

General Fund -
Salaries (710,000) (735,000) (750,000) (15,000) (702,000) 
Retirement (527,000) (531,000) (525,134) 5,866 (533,899) 
Health insurance (593,000) (630,000) (592,800) 37,200 (592,800) 
Capital outlay and other costs (948,000) (870,000) (969,714) (99,714) (73,971) 

Debt Servfice Fund (680,000) (680,000) (683,50.5) (3,505) (669,259) 
Utility Fund -

Retirement (98,000) (89,000) (88,500) 500 (104,317) 
Health insurance (187,000) (200,000) (187,200) 12,800 (187,200) 
Capital outlay and other costs (324.000) (335.000) (376.607) (41.607) (53.455) 

T otal other financing sources (uses) (4.007.000) (4,070,000) (4.024.993) 45.007 (2.896.901) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other sources over expenditures 
and otlier financing uses (154,000) 43,000 339,904 296,904 179,220 

Fund balance, beginning 1.285.963 1,285,963 1.285.963 1.106.743 

Fund balance, ending $1,131,963 $1,328,963 S 1.625.867 S 296.904 S 1.285.963 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA 
POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Eiability 
and Related Ratios 

Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Total OPEB Liability 2018 2019 2020 
Service cost $ 378,008 $ 296,133 S 293,301 
Interest 1,061,073 1,146,518 542,828 
Changes of benefit terms - (9,517,341) -
Differences between expected 
and actual experience (513,681) 1,548,248 337,699 

Changes of assumptions (3,208,364) (1,101,763) 2,265,355 
Benefit payments (557,384) (522,991) (363,072) 
Net change in total OPEB liability (2,840,348) (8,151,196) 3,076,111 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 30,656,137 27,815,789 19,664,593 

Total OPEB liability - ending $27,815,789 $ 19,664,593 $ 22,740,704 

Covered employee payroll $ 4,503,826 $ 4,638,941 S 5,210,543 

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll 617.60% 423.90% 436.44% 

Notes to Schedule: 
Benefit change: None None None 

Changes of Assumptions: 
Discount Rate: 4.10% 2.74% 2.12% 

This schedule is inten(kd to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed 
as they become available. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proportion 
of the net 
pension 
liability 

Proportionate 
share of the 
net pension 

liability 

Covered 
employee 

payroll 

Share of the net 
pension liability 
as a percentage 
of its covered 

employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net 
position as a 

percentage of the 
total pension 

liabiEtv 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System 

2020 3.00279% $ 2,721,209 $ 2,461,504 110.55% 66.26% 

2019 2.86696% $ 2,508,058 $ 2,205,125 113.74% 66.14% 

2018 2.97348% $ 2,515,062 $ 2,212,271 113.69% 65.60% 

2017 3.02570% $ 2,617,937 $ 2,097,862 124.79% 63.49% 

2016 2.92099% $ 2,421,235 S 1,962,066 123.40% 63.30% 

2015 2.93837% $ 1,997,053 $ 2,001,427 99.78% 68.71% 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
2020 
2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

0.38048% 
0.34904% 
0.36201% 
0.38059% 
0.38315% 
0.40739% 

$ 3,516,513 
$ 3,169,850 
$ 3,060,488 
$ 3,322,738 
$ 3,591,195 
$ 3,191.490 

1,386,597 
1,066,921 
926,323 
997,410 
969,480 

1,063,951 

253.61% 
297.10% 
330.39% 
333.14% 
370.42% 
299.97% 

70.94% 
71.01% 
71.89% 
70.08% 
66.00% 
70.73% 

Firefighters' Retirement System 
2020 
2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

0.75184% 
0.61380% 
0.57644% 
0.58083% 
0.68091% 
0.75836% 

$ 5,211,409 
$ 3,843,548 
$ 3,315,739 
$ 3,329,241 
$ 4,453,793 
$ 4,092,960 

$ 2,144,535 
$ 1,596,195 
$ 1,428,739 
$ 1,309,980 
$ 1,471,020 
$ 1.544,795 

243.01% 
240.79% 
232.07% 
254.14% 
302.77% 
264.95% 

72.61% 
73.96% 
74.76% 
73.55% 
68.20% 
72.45% 

This schedule ^ intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they 
become available. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 

Schedule of Contributions 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Fiscal 
Year 

Statutorily 
required 

contribution 

Contributions 
relative to 
statutorily 
required 

contribution 

Contribution 
deficency 
(excess) 

Covered 
employee 

Contributions as 
a percentage of 

covered 
employee 

payroll 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
2020 S 325,265 $ 363,111 $ (37,845) S 2,461,504 14.8% 

2019 S 309,718 $ 311,044 $ (1,326) s 2,205,125 14.1% 
2018 S 301,384 $ 303,643 $ (2,259) s 2,212,271 13.7% 
2017 S 257,211 $ 256,915 $ 296 s 2,097,862 12.2% 
2016 s 203,877 $ 222,341 $ (18,464) s 1,962,066 11.3% 

2015 s 190,136 $ 190,136 $ - s 2,001,427 9.5% 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
2020 s 353,317 $ 459,854 $ (106,537) s 1,386,597 33.2% 
2019 s 299,910 $ 345,395 $ (45,485) s 1,066,921 32.4% 

2018 s 291,872 $ 350,087 $ (58,215) s 926,323 37.8% 
2017 s 321,988 $ 334,457 $ (12,469) s 997,410 33.5% 
2016 s 343,269 $ 352,248 $ (8,979) s 969,480 36.3% 
2015 s 324,732 $ 324,732 $ - s 1,063,951 30.5% 

Firefighters' Retirement System 
2020 s 480,159 $ 644,597 $ (164,438) s 2,144,535 30.1% 
2019 s 401,834 $ 433,329 $ (31,495) s 1,596,195 27.1% 
2018 s 407,191 $ 378,616 $ 28,575 s 1,428,739 26.5% 

2017 s 365,154 $ 338,955 $ 26,199 s 1,309,980 25.9% 
2016 s 418,372 $ 386,775 $ 31,597 s 1,471,020 26.3% 
2015 s 451,853 $ 451,853 S - s 1,544,795 29.3% 

* Amounts presented were determined as of the end of the fiscal year. 

This schedule ri intended to show iiifoimation for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they 
become available. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Schedule Justice System Funding — Receiving Entity 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

First Six 
Month Period 

Ended 
6/30/2020 

Second Six 
Month Period 

Ended 
12/31/2020 

Receipts From; 
City Court of Abbeville, Fines 
City Court of Abbeville, Witness Fees 
Cily Court of Abbeville, Intoxilizer Fees 
Vermilion Parish Sheriffs Office, Intoxilizer Fees 

T olal Receipts 

28,656 
3,431 

75 
27 

32.189 

24,756 
3,941 
151 
356 

29.204 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Reveni^s 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31,2019 

2020 
Variance -

Budaet Favorable 2019 
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) Actual 

Taxes; 
Ad valorem $ 334,000 s 335,000 $ 343,704 S 10,704 $ 338,473 
Housing authority payment in 

lieu of taxes 21,000 20,000 16,740 (3,260) 19,184 
Chain store 12.000 12.000 12.905 905 11.910 

T otaltaxes 367.000 367,000 373.349 8,349 369.567 

Licenses and permits: 
Occupational licenses 520,000 527,000 533.453 6,453 519,683 
Beer and liquor licenses 20,000 20,000 17,735 (2,265) 19,135 
Building and other permits 41.000 41.000 44.401 3.401 45.896 

T otal licenses and permits 581.000 588.000 595.589 7.589 584.714 

Intergovernmental: 
Vermilion Parish Police 

Jury/School Board -
Fire insurance tax 75,000 50,000 50,000 - 74,548 
Resource officer 35,000 17,000 13,606 (3,394) 31,550 

State of Louisiana -
Beer taxes 25,000 25,000 24,942 (58) 22,919 
State grants 40,000 61,500 50,433 (11,067) 90,557 

Federal -
CARES - - 15,075 15,075 -
Police department grants 20.000 20,000 15.236 (4.764) 17.712 

T otal intergovernmental 195.000 173.500 169.292 (4,208) 237.286 

Fines and forfeitures 75.000 60,000 59.325 (675) 60.243 

Miscellaneous: 
Rental income 113,000 121,000 128.845 7,845 109,998 
Franchise fees - Reliant 80,000 70,000 64,383 (5,617) 70,467 
Franchise fees - Cable TV 75,000 70,000 67,356 (2,644) 69.345 
Franchise fees - Bell South 15,000 13,000 10,359 (2,641) 13,383 
Franchise fees - La Competitive 6.000 6,000 7.528 1,528 7,746 
Franchise fees - Entergy 38,000 38,000 37,444 (556) 38,686 
Interest income 1.000 1,000 1,224 224 4.020 
Witness fees 9,000 9,000 8,000 (1,000) 7,761 
Youth recreation revenues 4,000 - - - 3,795 
Oil and mineral leases 97,000 25,000 28,098 3,098 87,982 
Other sources 44.000 95.500 117.078 21.578 146.024 

T otal miscellaneous 482.000 448.500 470.315 21.815 559.207 

T otal revenues S 1.700.000 SI.637.000 S 1.669.870 S 32.870 S 1.811.017 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Expenditures 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

2020 
Variance -

Buc Iget Favorable 2019 
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) Actual 

General government; 
Administrative -

Salaries S 389,500 $ 401,500 S 398,656 S 2,844 S 365,916 
Employees' insurance 204,000 191,000 194,045 (3,045) 213,741 
Payroll taxes 34,500 34,500 34,736 (236) 32,346 
Retirement 51,000 53,000 56,682 (3,682) 49,660 
General insurance 41,500 41,500 36,628 4,872 42,048 
Equipment operating 11,500 10,500 5,936 4,564 11,343 
Dues and subscriptions 3,000 3,000 3,512 (512) 2,789 
Janitorial 12,000 12,000 10,875 1,125 11,175 
Legal and accounting 159,000 159,000 155,896 3,104 149,007 
Maintenance and repairs 14,500 14,500 14,096 404 14,637 
Other professional fees 64,000 64,000 59,848 4,152 64,532 
Travel and convention 5,000 2,000 1,099 901 10,627 
Office supplies 28,000 28,000 21,945 6,055 32,019 
Postage 10,500 10,500 8,552 1,948 10,500 
Publications 25,000 20,000 17,672 2,328 28,293 
T elephone 25,000 25,000 27,553 (2,553) 24,415 
Rents 7,500 7,500 7,200 300 7,200 
Utilities 12,000 12,000 11,999 1 12,484 
Employee drug testing 500 2,000 2,269 (269) 482 
Security guard 24,000 21,000 20,100 900 23,050 
Main Street/related projects 10,000 15,500 26,626 (11,126) 55,002 
T ourist welcome center 10,000 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 
Drug task force 35,000 35,000 35,000 - 35,000 

Miscellaneous 67.500 42.000 31.202 10.798 48.947 

T otal administrative L244.500 1.215.000 L192J27 22,873 1.255.213 

Airport expenses -
Salaries 22,000 20,000 20,000 - 26,408 
Payroll taxes 1,500 1,500 1,530 (30) 1,530 
Utilities and telephone 13,000 14,000 14,668 (668) 13,473 
Equipment operating 5,000 4,000 1,514 2,486 3,081 
Repairs and maintenance 9,000 13,000 11,009 1,991 11,734 
Professional services 15,000 20,000 23,114 (3,114) 17,898 
Supplies 15,000 25,000 8,007 16,993 22,333 

Miscellaneous 2.500 2.500 3.284 (784) 4.531 

T otal airport 83.000 100.000 83.126 16,874 100,988 T otal airport 

(continued) 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Expenditures (Continued) 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

2020 
Variance -

Budget Favorable 2019 
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) Actual 

Cit>^ Court -
Salaries : £ 114,000 $ 114,000 S 113,505 $ 495 S 101.887 
Employees' insurance 108,000 100,000 93.231 6,769 101,133 
Payroll taxes 9,000 9,000 10.007 (1,007) 8,960 
Retirement 29,000 30,000 33,054 (3,054) 29,737 
General insurance 21,000 22,000 21.513 487 23,123 
Equipment operating 5,000 5,000 3,065 1,935 4,425 
Repair and maintenance 4,000 4,000 42 3,958 2,233 
Utilities 4,000 4,000 4,757 (757) 3,213 
Witness fees 8,000 4,000 2,550 1,450 5.750 
Le^l 32,000 32,000 31.246 754 30,046 
Miscellaneous 1,000 1.000 648 352 1.073 

T otal city court 335,000 325,000 313.618 11,382 311,580 

Tax & Licenses -
Salaries 73,500 71,000 71.139 (139) 72,484 
Employees' insurance 21,000 27,000 27,450 (450) 22,574 
Payroll taxes 5,500 5,000 5,115 (115) 5.403 
Retirement 10,000 9,000 9.071 (71) 14,817 
Postage 1,000 1,000 - 1,000 849 
Supplies 11,500 21,000 24,055 (3,055) 18,764 
Miscellaneous 500 1.000 421 579 91 

T otal motor pool 123,000 135,000 137.251 f2,25n 134,982 

Civil Service -
Salaries 15,000 15,000 11,463 3,537 13.970 
PayroU taxes 1,500 1,500 791 709 990 
Supplies 1,500 500 - 500 -
Medical services 10,000 7,000 6,677 323 10,400 
Le^l fees 5,000 1.000 5.118 (4,118) 4.600 

T otal civil seivice 33,000 25,000 24.049 951 29,960 

T otal general sovemment 1.818,500 ] [,800.000 1,750,171 49,829 1,832.723 
(continued) 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Expenditures (Continued) 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31,2019 

2020 

Budget 
Original Final Actual 

Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
2019 

Actual 

Public Safety: 
Police -

Salaries S 1,778,500 S 1,735,000 S 1,749,974 S (14,974) S 1,403,242 
Employees' insurance 563,500 539,000 548,067 (9,067) 582,886 
Payroll taxes 31,000 33,500 34,334 (834) 25,626 
Retirement 454,500 468,000 467,257 743 349,616 
General insurance 279,000 270,000 254,084 15,916 264,714 
Equipment operating 140,000 140,000 157,365 (17,365) 151,248 
Unifonns 15,000 15,000 14,096 904 20,125 
Supplies 39,500 41,500 44,789 (3,289) 47,713 
Membership dues 8,000 8,000 7,988 12 15,101 
Prisoner housing 70,000 65,000 61,369 3,631 61,463 
Utilities 12,000 12,000 13,100 (1,100) 11,614 
T elephone 32,000 32,000 33,906 (1,906) 36,128 
Dog ej^enses 5,000 5,000 3,307 1.693 2,548 
DARE program 5,000 5,000 6,225 (1,225) 4,715 
Schools and convention 5,000 5,000 2,223 2,777 -
Protessional tees 30,000 30,000 33,928 (3,928) 29,301 
Miscellaneous 17,000 21.000 33.611 (12.611) 21.497 

Total police 3.485.000 3.425.000 3.465.623 (40.623) 3.027.537 

Fire -
Salaries 1,994,500 2,050,000 2,056,189 (6,189) 1,732,918 
Employees' insurance 590,000 590,000 606,845 (16,845) 657,739 
Payroll taxes 162,000 170,000 175,268 (5,268) 141,197 
Retirement 489,000 635,000 644,597 (9,597) 433,329 
General insurance 240,500 241,000 206,030 34,970 189,730 
Equipment operating 55,000 60,000 60,454 (454) 59,025 
Uniforms 15,000 15,000 18,413 (3,413) 20,385 
Supplies 35,000 35,000 40,883 (5,883) 46,827 
Utilities 20,000 20,000 19,385 615 18,182 
T elephone 10,000 10,000 11,386 (1,386) 10,386 
Maintenance and repairs 18,000 18,000 11,598 6,402 10,093 
Professional services 1,000 1,000 1,280 (280) 1,651 
Schools and conventions 15,000 15,000 3,620 11,380 23,473 

Miscellaneous 13,000 15,000 13.584 1,416 14,864 

Total fire 

T olal public safety 

3.658.000 

7.143.000 

3,875,000 

7.300.000 

3.869,532 

7.335.155 

5.468 

(35.155) 

3,359,799 

6.387.336 
(continued) 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Expenditures (Continued) 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

2020 

Budget 
Original Final Actual 

Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
2019 

Actual 

Hi^ways and Streets; 
Salaries S 417,000 $ 380,000 S 367,330 $ 12,670 S 376,969 
Employees' insurance 120,000 110,000 112,280 (2,280) 123,035 
Payroll taxes 32,000 29,000 26,801 2,199 27,910 
Retirement 43,000 43,000 45,765 (2,765) 38,362 
General insurance 184,000 184,000 175,711 8,289 187,464 
Equipment operating 63,000 68,000 61,765 6,235 67,100 
Utilities and telephone 22,000 22,000 23,928 (1,928) 22,864 
Professional services 13,000 10,000 4,255 5,745 12,984 
Maintenance of grass 115,000 115,000 111,700 3,300 111,815 
SmaH tools and supplies 33,000 34,000 30,227 3,773 47,843 
Maintenance materials 40,000 30,000 17,959 12,041 32,400 
Electricity for street lights 80,000 80,000 76,097 3,903 76,122 
Uniforms 8,000 10,000 10,085 (85) 9,579 

Miscellaneous 10.000 7.000 6.834 166 11.481 

Total highways 

and streets 1.180.000 1.122.000 L070.737 51.263 L145.928 

Culture and Recreation: 
Parks -

Salaries 134,500 119,000 112,946 6,054 123,833 
Employees' insurance 23,000 23,000 21,650 1,350 25,946 
PayroE taxes 10,500 10,500 8,471 2,029 9,270 
Retirement 12,500 12,500 12,101 399 11,763 
General insurance 16,000 16,000 12,931 3,069 14,339 
Equipment operating 6,000 6,000 5,548 452 7,766 
SuppEes 12,500 11,500 7,657 3,843 14,356 
Repairs and maintenance 75,000 75,000 86,466 (11,466) 85,899 
UtiEties and telephone 67,500 59,000 53,536 5,464 65,622 
Security and janitorial - - 904 (904) 899 
Youth recreation 77,000 77,000 68,750 8,250 77,099 

MisceEaneous 8.500 9,500 10.219 (719) 9.141 

T otal parks 443.000 419.000 401.179 17.821 445.933 

(continued) 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Expenditures (Continued) 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

2020 

Budget 
Variance -
Favorable 2019 

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) Actual 

Capital outlay; 
General government -

Administrative 
Airport 

Public safety -
Police 

$ 2,500 
5,000 

5.000 

S 20,000 
5,000 

5.000 

$ 12,363 
18,936 

S 7,637 
(13,936) 

5.000 

S 33,120 
702,425 

27.362 
T otal capital outlay 12.500 30.000 31.299 (1.299) 762,907 

T otal expenditures SI 0.597.000 SI 0.671.000 S 10.588.541 S 82.459 S 10.574.827 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

2020 

Budaet 
Original Final 

Variance -
Favorable 

Actual (Unfavorable) 
2019 

Actual 

Other financing sources: 
T ransfers from other funds 

Utility Fund 
Sales T ax Fund 

$6,299,000 $6,061,000 S 6,174,232 S 113,232 $6,155,928 
2,778,000 2,766,000 2,785,053 19,053 1,855,625 

Airport Improvement Fund 
T ransfers to other funds -

Sales T ax Fund 
Utility Fund 

Airport Improvement Fund 

(60,000) 

(10.000) (9.592) 408 (18.028) 

T otal other financing 

sources •017.000 $8.817.000 $ 8.949.693 $ 132.693 $ 7.993.525 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
Nomnajor Governmental Fimds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
December 31,2020 

With comparative Totals for December 31, 2019 

Special Debt Capital Totals 
Revenue Service Projects 2020 2019 

ASSETS 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits S 166,494 $ 586,895 $ - S 753,389 $ 745,808 
Receivables -

Ad valorem taxes 39,275 - - 39,275 17,153 
Other receivable - 9,442 

Due from other governments 2 : 3.750 3.750 91.345 

Total assets S 205.769 S 586.895 S 3.750 S 796.414 S 863.748 

LLABILITIES AND FUND BAL.ANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable S 69 $ : $ 3.750 S 3.819 $ 113.064 

Total liabilities 69 - 3.750 3.819 113.064 

Fund balances: 
Restricted for economic development 24,078 - - 24,078 24,078 
Restricted for fue protection 94,071 - - 94,071 90,946 
Restricted for sewer improvement 87,551 - - 87,551 60,882 
Assigned for debt service ;;;; 586,895 ^ 586,895 574,778 

T otal fond balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances S 205.769 

205.700 586.895 792.595 750.684 

S 205.769 S 586.895 ^ 3.750 S 796.414 S 863.748 

70 



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
Nomnajor Governmental Fimds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Special Debt Capital Totals 
Revenue Sendee Projects 2020 2019 

Revenues; 
Taxes 5 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

e 86,388 
141,438 

217 

S 

674 

S 
180,174 

$ 86,388 
321,612 

891 

S 84,633 
1,087,175 

44.495 

T otal revenues 228,043 674 180,174 408.891 1.216,303 

Expenditures: 
Current -

General government 
The protection 

Capital outlay 
Debt service -

Principal retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 

8,148 

102,204 

694,000 

65.959 

188,009 

8,148 

290,213 

694,000 

65.959 

10,992 
1,223,391 

615,000 

80.677 

T otal ej^enditures 110,352 759.959 188,009 L058.320 1.930,060 

Deficiency of revenues 

over expenditures 117.691 (759.285) (7.835) (649.429) (713.757) 

Other financing sources (uses); 
Transfers in 

Transfers out (87.897) 
771,402 9,592 

(1,757) 

780,994 
(89.654) 

906,617 

(176.145) 

T otal financing sources (uses) (87,897) 771.402 7,835 691.340 730.472 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources 
over expenditures and other 
financing uses 29,794 12,117 41,911 16,715 

Fund balance, beginning 175.906 574.778 . 750.684 733.969 

Fund balance, ending ! e 705.700 S 586.895 S S 797.595 8 750.684 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Public Improvement (Sewer) Fund 

This fund accounts for the receipt and disbursement of ad valorem taxes dedicated to public improvement 
of the City's sewer facilities. 

Maintenance and Operation - Fire Department Fund 

This fund accounts for the receipt and disbursement of proceeds from the Vermilion Parish Police Jmy to 
be used for the purpose of construction, acquiring, improving, and maintaining fire department facilities 
and equipment. 

Economic Development District No. 1 

This fund accounts for the receipt and disbursement of proceeds from the half cent sales and use tax 
within the boun(faries of Economic District No. 1. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
December 31,2020 

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019 

Public Maint. and Economic 
Improvement Operation - Development 

Sewer Fii'e Dept. District No. 1 
Fund Fund 

ASSETS 

Interest-bearing deposits : 
Receivables: 

Ad valorem taxes 

T otal assets ; 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable : 

T otal liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Restricted for economic 

development 
Restricted for fire protection 
Restricted for sewer 

improvements 

T otal fund balances 

T otal liabilities and 

fund balances : 

39.275 

69 

69 

87.551 

87.551 

Totals 

94,071 

94.071 

87.620 S 94.071 

Fund 2020 2019 

$ 24,078 $166,494 $171,030 

. 39.275 17.153 
S 24.078 $205,769 S188.183 

$ S 69 S 12,277 

69 12.277 

24,078 24,078 24.078 
- 94,071 90,946 

. 87,551 60.882 

24.078 205.700 175.906 

$ 24.078 $205,769 S188.183 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Public Maint. and Economic 
Improvement Operation - Development 

Sewer Fire Dept. District No. 1 
Fund Fund Fund 

Totals 
2020 2019 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Other revenues 

T otal revenues 

39 

^6.427 

141,438 
178 

141.616 

141,438 
217 

228.043 

$ 84,633 
95,140 
43.301 

223.074 

Expenditures: 
Current -

General government -
Economic development 

Public safety -
Fire protection 

8.148 

51.610 50.594 

,148 

10,992 

Total expenditures 59.758 50.594 110.352 91.288 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures 26.669 91.022 117.691 131.786 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out - (87.8971 (87.897) (176.145) 
T otal financing sources (uses) - (87,897) (87.897) (176,145) 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures 
and other financing uses 26,669 3,125 29,794 (44,359) 

Fund balances, beginning 

Fund balances, endina 

60.882 90.946 24.078 175.906 220.265 

^7.551 S 94.071 24.078 S205.700 S175.906 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund 
Public Improvement Sewer Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

2020 

Original 
Budset 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
2019 

Actual 

Revenues: 
T axes -

Ad valorem taxes 
Other revenues -

Miscellaneous 
Interest 

T otal revenues 

$ 83,000 $ 83,000 

83.000 83.000 

39 

i.427 

S 3,388 S 84,633 

39 

21,786 

164 

3,427 106,583 

Expenditures: 
Current -

General government 
Capital outlay 

T otal ejq)enditures 

10,000 

10.000 

60.000 

60.000 

8,148 
51.610 

59.758 

(8,148) 
8.390 

242 

51.975 

51.975 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 73,000 

Other financing sources (uses): 
T ransfers out 

T otal other financing souces (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over e^enditures and other 
financing uses 73,000 

Fund balance, beginning 60.882 

23.000 

23,000 

60.882 

26.669 

26,669 

60.882 

3,669 54,608 

t88,563) 

3,669 

(88.563) 

(33,955) 

94.837 

Fund balance, ending 133.882 S 83.882 87.551 3.669 S 60. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund 

Maintenance and Operation - Fire Department Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Budaet 

2020 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
2019 

Actual 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental -

Federal grants 
Vermilion Parish Police Jury 

Fire protection 
Fire insurance tax 

Other -
Interest and other revenue 

T otal revenues 

95,000 

95,000 

S 22,000 S 21,629 

95,000 
25,000 

142,000 

95,140 
24,669 

178 
141.616 

(371) S 

140 
(331) 

178 

95,140 

21.351 
(3841 116,491 

Expenditures: 
Maintenance and repairs 
Capital outlay 

T otal expenditures 

25.000 

25,000 

52.000 

52,000 

50.594 

50.594 

1.406 

1,406 

10,992 
28.321 

39,313 

Deficiency of revenues 
over e^enditures 70,000 90,000 91,022 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out 187.000) 188.000) 187.897) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 187,000) 188,000) 187.897) 

1,022 

103 

103 

77,178 

r87.582) 

187,582) 

Deficiency of revenues 
and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses (17,000) 

Fund balance, beginning 90.946 

2,000 

90.946 

3,125 

90.946 

1.125 (10,404) 

101.350 

Fund balance, endina S 73.946 S 92.946 S 94.071 S 1.125 S 90.946 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund 

Economic Development District No. 1 Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Original 
Budget 

2020 

Final 
Budffit Actual 

Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
2019 

Actual 

Revenues: 
T axes -

Sales taxes 
Other revenues -

Interest 

T otal revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current -

General government -
Capital outlay 

T otal expendimres 

2A078 

24.078 

Excess of revenues 
over e^enditures (24,078) 

Fund balance, beginning 24.078 24.078 24.078 24.078 

Fund balance, ending S 24.078 S 24.078 S 24.078 
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NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

2012 Revenue Refunding Bond Fund 

This fund accumulates monies for payment of the $4,160,000 Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012. 
Debt service is financed by transfers from the Sales Tax Fund and the Maintenance and Operation — Fire 
Department Fund. 

2014 Sales Tax Revenue Bond Fund 

This fund accumulates monies for payment of the $2,100,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2014. 
Debt sendee is financed by transfers from the Sales Tax Fund. 

2016 Revenue Bond Fund 

This fiind accumulates monies for payment of the $600,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2016. Debt sendee is 
financed by transfers from the Maintenance and Operation - Fire Department Fund. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
Nomnajor Debt Service Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
December 31,2020 

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019 

2012 2014 
Revenue Sales T ax 

Refanding Revenue 
Bond Fund Bond Fund 

2016 
Revenue 

Bond 
Fund 

Totals 
2020 2019 

ASSETS 

Interest - hearing deposits S 395.848 S 123.036 S 68.0] 1 S 586.895 S 574.778 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities; 
Accounts payable S -S -$ -$ -$ 

Fund balance: 
Assigned for debt service 

T oral liabilities and fand baknce 

395.848 123.036 .011 586.895 574.778 

S 395.848 S 123.036 $ 68.011 S 586.895 S 574.778 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
Nomnajor Debt Service Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019 

2012 2014 2016 
Revenue Sales Tax Revenue 

Refunding Revenue Bond 
Bond Fund Bond Fund Fund 

Totals 
2020 2019 

Revenues: 
Other revenues -

Interest income 

Expenditures: 
Debt service -

Principal retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 

T otal expenditures 

S 401 1 

447,000 
26.066 

473.066 

204 

172,000 
28.143 

200.143 

75,000 
11.750 
86.750 

_69 $ 674 S 1.194 

694,000 615,000 
65.959 80.677 
759.959 695.677 

Deficiency of revenues 
over expenditures (472,665) (199.939) i.681) (759.285) (694.483) 

Other financing sources; 
T ransfers in 481.380 202.125 87.897 771.402 756.841 

Excess of revenues and other 
financins sources over 
expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending 

8,715 

387.133 

2,186 

120.850 

1,216 

66.795 

12,117 

574.778 

62,358 

512.420 

S 395.848 S 123.036 S 68.011 S 586.895 S 574.778 



NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Airport Improvement Fund 

This fund accounts for improvement projects at the Abbeville Chris Crusta Memorial Airport. Program 
expenditures are generally funded by federal and state grants. 

LCDBG Street Improvement Fund 

This fund accounts for improvement projects for the LCDBG. Program expenditures are generally 
funded by federal and state grants. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
Nomnajor Capital Projects Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
December 31,2020 

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FLT^D BALANCE 

LCDBG 
Airport Street 

Improvement Improvement 
Fund Fund 

Totals 
2020 2019 

Cash and interest - bearing deposits 

Other receivable 
Due from other govemments 3.750 

3.750 $ 
3.750 

9,442 
91.345 

3.750 S 100.787 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 

Due to other fund 

T otal liabilities 

3.750 

3.750 

3,750 $ 100,787 

3.750 100.787 

Fund balance: 
Unassigned 

T otal liabilities and fund balance 3.750 S_ 3.750 S 100.787 



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
Nomnajor Capital Projects Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

LCDBG 
Airport Street 

Improvement Improvement 
Fund Fund 

Totals 
2020 2019 

Revenues: 
Federal grants 
State grants 

T otal revenues 

^0.174 

180.174 

S - S 800,000 
180.174 192.035 

180.174 992.035 

Expenditures: 
Current -

Professional services 
Capital outlay -

Airport improvements 
Street overlay improvements 

T otal expenditures 

188.009 

188.009 

188,009 

188.009 

238,391 
904.704 

1.143.095 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (7,835) (7,835) (151,060) 

Other financing sources: 
T ransfers in 
T ransfers out 

T otal financing sources (uses) 

9,592 
(1.757) 
7.835 

9,592 
(1.757) 
7.835 

149,776 

149.776 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources 
over expeditures 

Fund balance, beginnini 

(1,284) 

1.284 

Fund balance, endins 



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 
Enterprise Fund 

Utility System Fund 

Comparative Departmental Analysis of Revenues and Expenses 
Years Ended Deeember 31, 2020 and 2019 

Electric Water 
2020 2019 2020 2019 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services $12,040,801 $ 12,846,348 $1,908,046 $1,843,467 

Other revenues 230,262 260.195 11.917 13,428 

T otal operating revenues 12.271.063 13.106.543 1.919.963 1.856.895 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries 430,359 361,795 503,950 491,987 
Employees' insurance 96,419 107,777 143,518 154,788 
OPEB (benefit) expense 44,442 (446,571) 29,857 (641,363) 
Payroll taxes 30,877 25,984 38,189 37,504 
Retirement 46,095 34,766 53,809 48,535 
Pension (benefit) obligation expense 62,827 (81,893) 3,618 (13,209) 
General insurance 91,402 99,828 72,622 75,710 
Equipment operating expense 37,100 45,975 25,913 22,008 
Maintenance and repairs - systems 280,458 493,789 124,906 131,043 
Electricity for pumps - - 48 50 
UtiEties - - 123.892 122,119 
Materials, tools and suppEes 25,116 41,056 157,682 177,668 
Electric power purchased 6,020,631 6,609,773 - -
Office ej^ense, postage and 

computer processing - - - -
Bad debts and coEection fees - - - -

MisceUaneous 1,095,578 30,459 27,847 27,139 
Depreciation 321,167 321,999 248,505 262,391 
Allocation of general and 

administrative expenses 410,089 92.739 307.567 69,554 

T otal operating expenses 8.992,560 7.737,476 1.861.923 965,924 

Operating income (loss) $ 3.278.503 8 5.369.067 $ 58.040 $ 890.971 
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Sewerage 
2020 2019 

General and 
Administrative 

2020 2019 
Totals 

2020 2019 

S 1,862,271 
30,810 

1.893,081 

502,899 
37.698 

.840.597 

15,811,118 
272,989 

16,084,107 

16,492,714 
311,321 

16.804.035 

371,131 364,420 412,478 376,025 1,717,918 1,594,227 
89,541 105,912 151,545 165,300 481,023 533,777 
27,728 (438,846) 46,928 (684,916) 148,955 (2,211,696) 
27,056 26,760 30,522 28,031 126,644 118,279 
44,557 38,836 57,811 45,173 202,272 167,310 

515 (32,618) - - 66,960 (127,720) 
60,499 64,929 12,995 14,279 237,518 254,746 
19,126 29,811 33,031 26,227 115,170 124,021 

223,996 245,843 - - 629,360 870,675 
51,422 56,461 - - 51,470 56,511 
109,146 105,353 14,234 14,047 247,272 241,519 
63,888 132.441 - - 246,686 351,165 

- - - - 6,020,631 6,609,773 

- - 92,777 82,393 92,777 82,393 
- - 72,796 56,699 72,796 56,699 

47,821 30.566 14,880 11,869 1,186,126 100,033 
487,747 501,220 85,225 96,720 1,142,644 1,182,330 

307.567 69.554 (1.025.222) (231.847) 

1.931,740 1.300.642 12.786.222 10.004.042 

S 138.6591 S 539.955 S S $ 3.297.885 $ 6.799.993 
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COMPLIANCE, INTERNAL CONTROL 

AND 

OTHER MATTERS 



DARNALL SIKES 
& FREDERICK 
A CORPORATION OP CERTIFIEO 

1231 East Laurel Avenue 
Eunice, LA /0535 

OTHER LOCATIONS: 

Lafayette Morgan City 

337-457-41-46 
33/-45/-b060 

• SFC^AS.COM 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting and on Complianee and Other Matters 

Based on an Audit of Finaneial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 

The Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor 
And Members of the City Council 
City of Abbeville, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of Abbeville, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Abbeville, Louisiana's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 12, 2021. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Abbeville, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
Abbeville, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City of Abbeville, Louisiana's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose deseribed in the first paragraph of tliis 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assuranee about whether the City of Abbeville, Louisiana's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statement. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The puipose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Vamal'Q Sties, & Jrederici 

A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants 

Abbeville, Louisiana 
May 12, 2021 



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended December 3L 2020 

PART I SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Auditor's Report 

An umnoditied opinion has been expressed on the primar}^ government's governmental 
activities, business type aetivities, and each major fund financial statements as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2020. 

Due to the omission of the financial data of the legally separate component units of the City 
of Abbeville, Eouisiana, we have expressed an adverse opinion on the aggregate discretely 
presented component units' opinion unit. 

Internal Control Deficiencies - Financial Reporting 

No significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting were disclosed during 
the audit of the financial statements. 

Material Noncompliance — Financial Reporting 

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements were disclosed during the 
audit of the financial statements. 

FEDERAL AWARDS 

This section is not applicable for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020. 

PART II FINDINGS RELATING TO AN AUDIT IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AIJDITING STANDARDS 

The audit did not disclose any findings that would require disclosure. 

PART III EINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

At December 31, 2020, the City of Abbeville, Louisiana, did not meet the requirements to 
have a single audit in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; therefore, this section is not 
applicable. 

PART IV MANAGEMENT LETTER 

A management letter was not issued for the year ended December 31, 2020. 



CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 
Year Ended December 3L 2020 

Prior year audit findings: 

There were no prior year audit findings. 
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CITY OF ABBEVILLE, EOUISIANA 

Summary Schedule of Management's Corrective Action Plan 
Year Ended December 3L 2020 

There are no current audit findings. 
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